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Chairman’s Statement
Dear Valued Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report of HIL Industries Berhad (“HIL” or “the
Group”) for the financial year ended 31st December 2016.

The Company & its Performance Highlights
During the financial year under review, the Group recorded revenue of RM97.343 million and profit before tax of RM22.339
million, representing a decrease of approximately RM22.769 million or 18.96% and RM2.464 million or 9.93% respectively
as compared to revenue of RM120.113 million and profit before tax of RM24.802 million in the preceding financial year.
This was primarily due to the weakened global and domestic economy.
For the period under review, the Group registered a basic earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of 5.92 sen,
a decrease of 0.30 sen from the corresponding year, whilst net asset per share for the Group is RM1.31, an increase of
RM0.21 compared to preceeding financial year.
Our financial position remains strong with a net cash position of RM152.538 million, an increase of RM21.056 million. This
will enable us to proceed with our expansion plans for our property division, to finance our ongoing projects as well as
looking for opportunites to add more land bank for development.

Dividends
The Board of Directors has recommended a first and final single tier dividend of 3% or 1.5 sen per ordinary shares
of RM0.50 each in respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2016. The dividend payment is subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 47th Annual General Meeting.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to all valued and loyal shareholders, customers,
suppliers, business partners, and bankers for their support and confidence in the Group.
My appreciation also goes to the Board of Directors of the Company and the management and staff of the Group for their
dedication and continued commitment to improve the overall performance of the Group.

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock
Chairman
April 2017
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Profile of Directors and
Key Senior Management
TAN SRI DATO’ NG BOON THONG @
NG THIAN HOCK
Executive Chairman
(Key Senior Management)

Malaysian, male, aged 69, was appointed to the Board on 7th February
2003 as an Executive Director and has been Executive Chairman since
4th July 2003. Tan Sri Dato’ Ng graduated with an Honours Degree in
Civil Engineering from the University of Malaya. He is the founder of the
A&M Realty Berhad’s Group of companies. He began his career in 1970
as an engineer in Perbadanan Urus Air Selangor Berhad before being
appointed as a Municipal Councilor for the Selangor Government, State
Assemblyman for the Barisan Nasional Party for the Selat Klang and
Pandamaran constituencies and a Senator for the Government. Tan Sri
Dato’ Ng is also the Executive Chairman of A&M Realty Berhad.
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng is a substantial shareholder of HIL. He is also the
father of Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong, the Managing Director
and Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng, the Executive Director of HIL. Tan
Sri Dato’ Ng does not have any conflict of interest with the Company.

DATO’ SETIA ABDUL HALIM BIN
DATO’ HAJI ABDUL RAUF
Executive Deputy Chairman

Malaysian, male, aged 79, was appointed to the Board on 7th February
2003 as an Executive Director and has been Executive Deputy Chairman
since 4th July 2003.
Dato’ Setia Abdul Halim holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the
University of Malaya and Masters Degree in Public and International
Affairs from the University of Pittsburgh, USA. Before joining the
private sector, he held key positions in government authorities and
agencies among which included Director-General of Implementation
Coordination Unit in the Prime Minister’s Department, State Secretary
of the State Government of Selangor, Director-General of Immigration
Department Malaysia, Deputy Director of Bureau of Research and
Consultancy, National Institute of Public Administration, Malaysia and
Senior Deputy Director-General of the Rubber Industry Smallholders
Development Authority. He has vast experience in management and
strategic business planning. He is Chairman of Kontena Nasional
Global Logistics Sdn Bhd and the Executive Deputy Chairman of A&M
Realty Berhad.
Dato’ Setia Abdul Halim does not have any interest in the securities
of the Company and does not have any family relationship with any
Director and/or major shareholder of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Key Senior Management

(continued)

DATO’ MILTON NORMAN
NG KWEE LEONG
Managing Director
(Key Senior Management)

Malaysian, male, aged 46, was appointed to the Board on 3rd July 1999
as Managing Director. He is a member of the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee.
Dato’ Milton graduated with an Honours Degree in Law from the
University of Western Australia in 1994. After graduating, he spent 9
months doing his pupilage in the legal office of Shearn Delamore and
was admitted to the Malaysian Bar as an Advocate and Solicitor in May
1995. He spent a further 6 months in Shearn Delamore before joining
HIL in December 1995 as general manager where he was responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Company.
Dato’ Milton is a substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue
of his parents’ shareholdings. He is the son of Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon
Thong @ Ng Thian Hock, the Chairman of HIL. He is also a Director in
A&M Realty Berhad. Dato’ Milton does not have any conflict of interest
in the Company.

MALCOLM JEREMY
NG KWEE SENG
Executive Director
(Key Senior Management)

Malaysian, male, aged 31, was appointed to the Board on 8th September
2008 as an Executive Director.
Mr. Malcolm graduated with double Degrees majoring in Accounting
and Law from Murdoch University, Western Australia in 2008. After
graduating he had spent a brief period in MIMB Investment Bank Bhd
before joining HIL. He currently oversees the finance and accounting
operations of the Group.
Mr. Malcolm is a substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue of
his parents’ shareholdings. He is the youngest son of Tan Sri Dato’ Ng
Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock, the Chairman of HIL and the youngest
brother to Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong, Managing Director of
the Company. He is also a Director in A&M Realty Berhad. Mr. Malcolm
does not have any conflict of interest in the Company.

TAN SRI DATO’ DR. SAK CHENG LUM
Independent and Non-Executive Director

Malaysian, male, aged 73, was appointed to the Board on 16th February
2007 as an Independent Director. He is a member of the Audit
Committee.
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum graduated with a Degree in Medicine
from the University of Singapore in 1968 and served as a medical
officer in the government service before going into private practice. His
commitments to the nation can be seen from his former appointments
including his election as the State Assemblyman under Barisan
Nasional party for the seat of Bagan Jermal in Penang, appointment
as Penang State Executive Councilor, Senator and Parliamentary
Secretary of Ministry of Domestic Trade and Consumer Affairs. Tan Sri
Dato’ Dr. Sak is also an Independent Director of A&M Realty Berhad,
Xinghe Holdings Berhad and Chairman of the Board of Trustees of
UTAR Education Foundation. He has on 31st August 2016 resigned all
his posts in Xinghe Holdings Berhad.
He does not have any interest in the securities of the Company and
does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Key Senior Management
(continued)

MAT RIPEN BIN MAT ELAH
Independent and Non-Executive
Director

Malaysian, male, aged 77, was appointed to the Board on 20th February
2004 as an Independent Director. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Tuan Mat Ripen graduated from National Chengchi University Taiwan
with a Bachelor of Law (Taiwan). He served in various capacities in
UMNO, and was formerly a political secretary to the Chief Minister in
Selangor. He is also a Director of A&M Realty Berhad.
He does not have any interest in the securities of the Company and
does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company.

OOI HOCK GUAN
Independent and Non Executive
Director

Malaysian, male, aged 51, was appointed to the Board on 26th February
2009 as an Independent Director. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Ooi graduated with a Degree in Economics from the University
of Leicester, United Kingdom and is a Professional Member of the
Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. After graduating he has spend a
total of 14 years with Royal Selangor Pewter and GCH Retail (Malaysia)
Sdn Bhd (Giant Hypermarket) specialising in Internal Audit and Finance
before joining HIL. Mr. Ooi is also a Director for A&M Realty Berhad.
He does not have any interest in the securities of the Company and
does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company.

OTHER INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS AND KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Saved as disclosed, none of the Directors and key senior management has any conflicts of interest with the Company and
none has convicted of any offences (other than traffic offences) in the past five years.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis
Introduction
With over 40 years’ experience in the plastic injection
industries, HIL enjoys the reputation of being a leading
one-stop custom injection moulder of engineering plastics
in South East Asia.
HIL began operations in Malaysia in 1969 as Hagemeyer
Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd., a Dutch company involved
in the manufacturing and trading of ‘BIC’ ball pens. In
1989, following a management buyout, the name of the
Company was changed to Hil Industries Sdn. Bhd.. It was
subsequently converted to a public listed company on the
10th June 1991 and listed on the KLSE on the 28th January
1992.

strives for total commitment and customer satisfaction,
employing various manufacturing in our pursuit for
manufacturing excellence. As a one-stop plastic solution
provider, our dedicated team will ensure that all our
customers’ requirements are met and that our products
are of the highest quality – right from product design,
procurement of raw materials and child parts, mould
design and manufacture right up to the final assembly and
testing of the product.
In an effort to grow and diversify its earnings base, HIL
through its subsidiaries, has ventured into property
development. The group primarily focuses on affordable
housing and especially in the Klang Valley area.

Business Operation Review
HIL obtained the ISO 9002 accreditation in 1991 and was
in actual fact, the first plastic injection moulder to attain it
in Malaysia. Other quality management and environmental
control system compliances certifications obtained by HIL
are QS9000 in 2003, TS16949 in 2004, ISO14001 in 2007
and OHSAS 18001 in 2009. HIL has also been an approved
manufacturer with Underwriters Laboratories USA since
1979.
HIL’s main factory is located on a 7 acre site in Jalan
Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16 Shah Alam and houses the
injection moulding, mould making, robotic spray painting
and metal stamping divisions. In 1998, HIL’s operations
commenced at its second factory in Jalan Bukit Kemuning,
Shah Alam. This factory has a built-up area of over 10,000
square metres and consists of a large assembly plant
together with facilities for a unique surface decoration
or coating technology as well as blow injection-molding
facilities.
HIL set up its third factory in Malaysia in 2007 with a builtup area of 3,000 square metres at the Prai Industrial Estate
Free Trade Zone in Penang. This factory offers injection
moulding, robotic spray painting and sub-assemblies
services to provide better support to OEMs in the northern
area.
HIL’s first foray into the overseas market began in 2006
with the set up of its plant in Suzhou, China. With over
8,000 square metres of built up factory, this plant offers
a one-stop plastic solution provider for the information
technology industry offering mould making, injection
molding, spray painting and various unique decoration
technologies as well as sub-assemblies.
HIL’s products can be found in various industries, ranging
from the automotive, consumer electronics, IT related
as well as industrial. Our customers consists of well
recognized brand names Multi-Nationals where quality,
cost and delivery are a must. As such, HIL continuously

Manufacturing Division
Our manufacturing division registered a decrease in
revenue mainly due to lower sales volume from our major
customers subsequent to the slowdown in the general
market condition and cautious consumer sentiment for
both our Malaysia and overseas subsidiary’s products.
							
The Malaysian automotive sales experienced a slowdown
in 2016. On the whole, the Group’s automotive industry is
quite dependent on the overall sales of our 2 national cars
and also the non-national brands. The uncertain economic
conditions have affected customers spending.
							
Our overseas operations in China recorded a decrease in
results, but better efficiency and other cost saving activities
has helped soften the impact from the drop in revenue.
We have secured some new projects but those have yet
to start production and hence have not contributed to the
Group‘s earnings in the financial period under review.
Property Division
HIL launched two property projects in Shah Alam namely
Kemuning Greenhills and Kemuning Hijauan II, which were
very successful and expect to do equally well with its latest
project namely the Quadz @ Kemuning Greenhills.
In 2016, the revenue was mainly contributed from our two
completed projects namely Kemuning Greenhills consisting
of 56 units of cluster Semi-D and Kemuning Hijauan II
consisting of 116 units of terraced houses. Both projects
have been completed and handed over to purchaser during
the financial year ended 31st December 2016.
HIL is confident that our next project after the successful
Kemuning Hijauan II , that is Kemuning Hijauan III which is
adjacent to Kemuning Hijauan II will be able to contribute
positively to the Group’s performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

In the meantime also, HIL will continue to expand its
property business especially focusing in the affordable
range of housing and centered in the Klang valley area. HIL
will continue to source and look out for opportunities to
obtain more development land within the Klang valley to
ensure the continuous growth for this business segment.

The sales launch of this property with affordable prices was
successfully launched on 16th May, 2016 with encouraging
responses from prospective purchasers.

Quadz @ Kemuning Greenhills

Kemuning Hijauan III

Artist impression of Quadz @ Kemuning Greenhills

Artist impression of Kemuning Hijauan III

QUADZ @ Kemuning Greenhills is a freehold luxury
2-storey cluster Semi Ds. It comprises of 64 units of
semi-detached houses with a land area from 32’ x 70’ and
a built-up of approximately 2,300 sq feet. QUADZ is sited
amidst the vibrant townships of Kota Kemuning and Bukit
Rimau. It offers a unique lifestyle that allows you to enjoy
luxurious and harmonious living in a serene neighbourhood
at Kemuning Greenhills.

Kemuning Hijauan III @ Kota Kemuning comprises of 108
units of 2-storey terraced houses, which is a continuation
of Kemuning Hijauan II, and we plan to launch this project in
the final quarter of 2017. The units have built-ups ranging
from 1,470 sq ft to 1,730 sq ft with affordable prices.

Designed for maximized built-up and cocooned in a
guarded enclave, this perfect abode is also nearby a host
of amenities. Savour short drives to hypermarket for your
daily groceries, Chinese Taipei International School, Chung
Hua Primary School, Columbia Asia Hospital and a host of
F&B outlets.

Kemuning Greenhills is located in a strategic location
where it enjoys speedy access to key locations via a
major network of highways namely Kemuning Shah Alam

Highway (LKSA), KESAS Highway, ELITE Highway, LDP and
Federal Highway.

Financial Review
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(continued)

Revenue

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

For financial year ended 31st December 2016, the Group
recorded revenue of RM97.343 million compared to
revenue of RM120.113 million in previous financial year.
This represented a decrease in revenue of RM22.769 million
or 18.96%. The decrease is mainly from manufacturing
division. Lower sales volume subsequent to the slowdown
in automotive market has reduce the Malaysia’s sales in
this division by RM16.776 million or 23.97%.

The profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company
decrease by 4.74% from RM17.199 million in the previous
financial year to RM16.384 million in the current financial
year.

As for manufacturing division in China, the sales are also
affected by the global weak economic conditions. Stiff price
competition among the manufacturers in China has also
affected our sales in China by RM3.591 million or 30.19%.
As for the property division, there is a marginal drop in
revenue of RM1.220 million or 3.43% subsequent to the
completion of our two projects at Bukit Kemuning.

Liquidity
The Group’s cash position increased from RM131.482
million as at 31st December 2015 to RM152.538 million as
at 31st December 2016. Net cash generated from operations
was RM25.723 million of which approximately RM0.845
million was used for capital expenditure and RM4.149
million for payment of dividend.
HIL is confident that its existing financial stand is sufficient
to finance its capital expenditure and working capital
requirements under its current and new development
plans.
Gearing
The Group’s borrowing is solely for hire purchase. Total hire
purchase loan decrease from RM1.581 million as at 31st
December 2015 to RM1.120 million as at 31st December
2016.
Dividend
In respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2015
as reported in the Director’s report of that year, a first and
final single tier dividend of 3% or 1.5 sen per ordinary
share of RM0.50 each amounting to RM4,149,258 was paid
on 18th August 2016.
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a first and
final single tier dividend in respect of the financial year
ended 31st December 2016 of 3% or 1.5 sen per share
on 276,617,344 ordinary shares, amounting to a dividend
payable of RM4,149,260 will be proposed for shareholders’
approval.
Outlook

Profit Before Tax
The Group recorded a profit before tax of RM22.339
million for the financial year ended 31st December 2016,
this represented a decrease of RM2.464 million or 9.93%
compared to 2015. The decrease is mainly attributed from
the slower demand from our customer.
Various cost saving planning and control has been
implemented in order to control the overall cost especially
under such tough economic conditions.

Moving forward, the economy in 2017 does not appear to
be encouraging due to the challenging global economic and
financial landscape. The changing in consumer behaviour,
spending habits and saving intentions is expected to affect
the sales of automotive industry.
The Group will persevere in its business initiatives to secure
more projects, continuously looking for new business
opportunities and to streamline it’s manufacturing process
to achieve cost optimization through greater efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

As for property division, the property market is expected to
remain soft in 2017 mired by issues such as unaffordability,
bank tightening in mortgage facilities and macro-economic
issues such as rising living costs and smaller growth
in incomes. The increasing living cost and economic
uncertainties have led to an upswing in worries about job
security, resulting in more cautious consumer spending.
We expect the demand for affordable housing to pick
up as people are becoming more realistic about their
expectation. This is in line with our Group’s direction of
expanding our property business especially focusing in the
affordable range of housing. The management is confident
that Kemuning Hijauan III will contribute satisfactory to the
Group’s performance as we are developing landed houses
that are within the affordable range in Klang Valley.
Besides this, the Group will continue to look for new
lands at strategic locations for future developments and
the possibility of joint ventures with some good partners
in developing more projects. Hence, The Group recently
entered into two conditional share sale agreements as per
our announcement to Bursa Malaysia Securities on 16th
Jan 2017 for the following:
Proposed Acquisition by the Group of A&M Concrete
Products Sdn Bhd, (“A&M Concrete”) and Proposed
Acquisition by the Group of Show Piece Sdn Bhd,, which
in turn holds 100% equity interest in Innocentral Sdn Bhd,
(“Innocentral”)
A&M Concrete is the registered owner of a parcel of
freehold land which has been approved for development
of 280 units within 3 blocks of condominium units as well
as 9 units of stratified 3-storey shops in Kota Kemuning
facing Bukit Kemuning Golf and Country Club.

Artist impression of Amverton Greens

Innocentral is the registered owner of a plot of land within
Mukim and District of Klang, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan
measuring 624,219 sq feet which has been approved for
the development of 310 units of double storey terraced
houses, and 8 units of double storey semi-detached houses
and a parcel of vacant residential land.
The rationale for this proposed acquisitions is to increase
our land bank in Klang Valley, and furthermore these lands
which have the Approved Development Order, will give us
the opportunity to start developing our project immediately.
In conclusion, the Proposed Acquisitions strategically fits
into the Group’s business strategy to expand its property
division and to diversify its earnings.

Artist impression of Amverton Links
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Statement on Corporate Governance
The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012” or “the Code”) sets out the broad principles and specific
recommendations on structures and processes which companies should adopt in making good corporate governance an
integral part of their business dealings and culture.
The Board of Directors has always been supportive of the adoption of the principles as set out in MCCG 2012. The
Board is committed to ensure that the highest standards of corporate governance are practiced throughout the Group
as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholder value and the financial
performance of the Company and the Group.
This Statement sets out the manner in which the Group has applied and the extent of compliance with the principles and
recommendations as set out in MCCG 2012.

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Clear Functions of the Board and Management
The Group acknowledges the pivotal role played by the Board of Directors in the stewardship of its direction and
operations. To fulfill this role, the Board is responsible for the overall corporate governance of the Group, including its
strategic direction, establishing goals for Management and monitoring the achievement of these goals.
The Board is responsible for oversight of the Company. Key matters reserved for the Board’s approval include the
following:•
•
•
•

Approval of financial results
Declaration of dividend
Annual business plan
Acquisition or disposal of material fixed assets

To ensure the effective discharge of its function and responsibilities, the Board has delegated specific responsibilities
to three (3) sub-committees (Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees). The details of the Audit Committee are
set out on page 22 to 23 while the details of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees are set out below. These
Committees have the authority to examine particular issues and report back to the Board with their recommendations.
The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters, however, lies with the entire Board.
The daily operations have been delegated to management. Management has been given the authority to decide on
operation matters within certain set limits where quick decisions are important to the growth and success of the Group.
Management is however accountable to the Board and must refer to the Board for decision where the matters are
material and involves strategic decisions.

Clear Roles and Responsibilities
The Board provides stewardship to the Group’s strategic direction and operations, and ultimately the enhancement of
long-term shareholders’ value. The Board is primarily responsible for:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adopting and monitoring progress of the Company’s strategies, budgets, plans and policies;
Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is properly managed;
Identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks;
Succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of and where appropriate, replacing
senior management
Developing and implementing investor relations programme or shareholders communication policy for the Group;
and
Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control systems and management information
systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.
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Statement on Corporate Governance
(continued)

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)
Formalised Ethical Standards through Code of Ethics
The Directors continue to adhere to the Company Directors’ Code of Ethics established which is based on principles in
relation to integrity, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and company policies and accountability in order
to enhance the high standards of corporate governance and behavior.

Strategies Promoting Sustainability
The Board is mindful of the importance of business sustainability and, in conducting the Group’s business, the impact on
the environmental, social and governance aspects is taken into consideration. The Group also embraces sustainability in
its operations. The Group’s activities on corporate social responsibilities for the financial year under review are disclosed
in the Statement on Corporate Social Responsibilities on page 28.

Access to Information and Advice
All Board meetings are structured with a pre-set agenda. Board papers providing updates on operation, financial and
corporate developments as well as minutes of meetings of the Board Committees are provided at least three (3) days in
advance to give Directors time to deliberate on the issues to be raised at the meetings.
All the Directors have been granted unrestricted access to all information pertaining to the Group’s business and affairs
as well advice and services of the Company Secretaries in order to assist them in their decision making. Where necessary,
the Directors may engage independent professionals, at the Group’s expense, to advise them on specialized issues for
the purpose of decision making.

Qualified and Competent Company Secretary
The Board is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company Secretary to the Board in the discharge
of its functions. The Company Secretary plays an advisory role to the Board in relation to the Company’s constitution,
Board’s policies and procedures and compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements, codes or guidance and
legislations. The Company Secretary supports the Board in managing the Company’s governance model, ensuring it is
effective and relevant.
During the year 2016, the Company Secretary attended all Board meetings and ensure that the deliberations in terms of
the issues discussed and decisions made thereof, were accurately and sufficiently recorded, and properly kept for the
purposes of meeting statutory regulations, Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) or other regulatory requirements.

Board Charter
The Board Charter is currently being drafted and will be posted on the Company’s website after the Board’s approval for
adoption. In the course of establishing a board charter, the Board recognises the importance to set out the key values,
principles and ethos of the Company, as policies and strategy development are based on these considerations. The Board
Charter is expected to include the division of responsibilities and powers between the Board and management as well as
the different committees established by the Board.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

(continued)

STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION
Nomination Committee
The Board has established a Nomination Committee on 29th March 2002 as it recognises the importance of the roles the
Committee plays not only in the selection and assessment of Directors but also in other aspects of corporate governance
which the Committee can assist the Board to discharge its fiduciary and leadership functions. The Nomination Committee
comprises the following members:
Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah
Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong
Ooi Hock Guan

(Independent/Non-Executive Director) - Chairman
(Non-Independent/Managing Director)
(Independent/Non-Executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include:
•

Annually review the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including core competencies which
Non-Executive and Executive Directors should have;

•

Assess on annual basis, the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the committees of the Board and for assessing
the contribution of each individual Director, including Independent Non-Executive Directors, as well as the Managing
Director;

•

Assess on annual basis, the tenure of an Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years.
Upon completion of the nine (9) years, an Independent Director may continue to serve on the Board subject to the
Director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent Director. To retain as Independent Director, the Board must justify and
seek shareholder’s approval for a person who has serve in that capacity for more than nine (9) years;

•

Recommends to the Board, candidates for all directorship to be filled by shareholders or the Board, including those
proposed by the Managing Director or any senior executives of the Company;

•

Recommends to the Board, Directors to fill the seats on Board Committees; and

•

Carry out its responsibilities with the assistance and services of a Company Secretary who must ensure that all
appointments are properly made, that all necessary information is obtained from Directors, both for the Company’s
own records and for the purposes of meeting statutory obligations, as well as obligations arising from the MMLR of
the Bursa Securities or other regulatory requirements.

In making its recommendations, the Nomination Committee should consider the candidates’:
•

Skills, knowledge, expertise and experience;

•

Professionalism;

•

Integrity; and

•

In the case of candidates for the position of Independent Non-Executive Directors, the Nomination Committee should
also evaluate the candidates’ ability to discharge such responsibilities/functions as expected from Independent NonExecutive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting during the financial year ended 31st December 2016. During the year
under review, the Nomination Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its Terms of Reference. These include:
•

Review and assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Audit Committee;

•

Review and assess the mix of skills, experience and competencies of each individual Director;

•

Review and recommendation to the Board, the re-election of the Directors who will be retiring at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company; and

•

Review and recommendation to the Board, the retention of the Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance
with the MCCG 2012.
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STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION (CONTINUED)
Develop, Maintain and Review Criteria for Recruitment and Annual Assessment of Directors
MCCG 2012 endorses as good practice, a formal procedure for appointments to the Board, with a Nomination Committee
making recommendation to the Board. MCCG 2012, however, states that this procedure may be performed by the Board
as a whole, although, as a matter of best practice, it recommends that this responsibility be delegated to a committee.
In previous years, the appointment of any additional Director was made as and when deemed necessary by the existing
Board with due consideration given to the mix of expertise and experience required for an effective Board. Pursuant to its
set up on 29th March 2002, the Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations for any appointment
to the Board. Any new nomination received is put to the full Board for assessment and endorsement.
In respect of the appointment of Directors, the Company practices a clear and transparent nomination process which
involves the following five (5) stages:
Stage 1: Identification of candidates
Stage 2: Evaluation of suitability of candidates
Stage 3: Meeting up with candidates
Stage 4: Final deliberation by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stage 5: Recommendation to the Board
In accordance with the Company’s Article of Association, all Directors who are appointed by the Board are subject
to election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting after the appointment. In additions, one-third of the
remaining Directors, are required to submit themselves for re-election by rotation at each Annual General Meeting. In
compliance with the MMLR of Bursa Securities, which came into force on 1st June 2002, all Directors are required to
submit themselves for re-election at least once every three years.
The Companies Act 2016, has now replaced the Companies Act 1965 effective 31st January 2017. With the enforcement of
the new Act, the Companies Act 1965 was therefore repealed. Previously, under section 129 of the Companies Act 1965 a
Director who is over 70 years of age must retire at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, and may be re-appointed.
Pursuant to new Companies Act 2016 Directors who attain the age of more than 70 years are no longer required to retire
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The Board has no immediate plans to implement gender diversity policy. In considering Board appointment, the Board
believes in and provides equal opportunity to candidates who have the necessary skills, experience, commitment
(including time commitment), core competencies and other qualities regardless of gender, ethnicity and age. Nevertheless,
the Board shall endeavor to support gender diversity in the boardroom as recommended by the Code as when the
opportunity arises.

Directors’ Remuneration
The Company set up the Remuneration Committee on 29th March 2002 as recommended by the Code to determine the
remuneration for a Director so as to ensure that the Company attracts and retain the Directors needed to run the Group
successfully. The component parts of remuneration are structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual
performance, in the case of Executive Directors. In the case of Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration reflects
the experience and level of responsibilities undertaken by the particular Non-Executive Director concerned.
The members of the Remuneration Committee, comprising a majority of Non-Executive Directors, are as follows:
Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah

(Independent/Non-Executive Director) - Chairman

Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong

(Non-Independent/Managing Director)

Ooi Hock Guan

(Independent/Non-Executive Director)
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STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
The Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board the framework of the Executive Directors’ remuneration and the
remuneration package for each Executive Director in all its forms, drawing from outside advice if necessary. Executive
Directors should pay no part in decisions on their own remuneration. It is, nevertheless, the responsibility of the entire
Board to approve the remuneration of these Directors.
The determination of the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is a matter for the Board as a whole. The individuals
concerned should abstain from discussions of their own remuneration. The Company reimburses reasonable expenses
incurred by these Directors in the course of their duties as Directors.
The appropriate Director’s remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available from the Company and its
subsidiary companies for the financial year ended 31st December 2016 are presented in the table below:
(i)

Aggregate remuneration of Directors categorised into appropriate components:
Received from Group and Company

Executive Directors
RM’000

Non-Executive Directors
RM’000

-

2

Salary & Allowances

672

-

EPF

94

-

Bonus

112

-

Fees

(ii)

The remuneration paid to Directors of the Company for the financial year ended 31st December 2016, in bands of
RM50,000 are tabulated as follows:

Number of Directors
Range of Remuneration

Executive

Non-Executive

Below RM50,000

-

1

RM100,001 to RM150,000

1

-

RM750,001 to RM800,000

1

-

* None of the Director’s remuneration falls within the RM50,001 to RM100,000 and RM150,001 to RM750,000.
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REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE
Annual Assessment of Independence
The Board, through the Nomination Committee, assesses the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
annually, taking into account the individual Director’s ability to exercise independent judgement at all times and to
contribute to the effective functioning of the Board.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors are not employees and they do not participate in the day-to-day management
as well as the daily business of the Company.
The Board is satisfied with the level of independence demonstrated by all the Independent Non-Executive Directors and
their ability to act in the best interest of the Company.

Tenure of Independent Directors
One of the recommendation of the MCCG 2012 states that the tenure of an Independent Director should not exceed a
cumulative term of nine (9) years. However, this do not preclude the Director from continuing to serve on the Board as
an Independent Non-Executive Director, subject to strong justifications provided by the Board and approvals sought from
shareholders. Rather than tenure of an Independent Non-Executive Director’s service, the Board places greater emphasis
on the Director’s ability to exercise unbiased judgement and his contribution towards the effective functioning of the
Board.
As at the date of this statement, Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum and En Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah has served tenure of nine
(9) years and above. The Nominating and Remuneration Committees have assessed and are satisfied that the Directors:
•

•
•
•
•

Are independent of the management and free from any business dealings or other relationship with the Group which
may be perceived to materially interfere with their ability to exercise unfettered judgement and act in the best interest
of the Group;
Have committed sufficient time and exercised due care during their tenure, actively participating in board meetings
and discussions;
Are able to capitalize on their familiarity, insights and knowledge of the Group’s operations and contribute positively
towards deliberations and decision-makings of the Board;
Have discharged their professional duties in good faith and in the best interest of the Group and shareholders; and
Have vigilantly safeguarded the interest of minority shareholders, as well as stakeholders of the Group

Shareholder’s Approval for the Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum and En Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah have offered themself for re-appointment as Directors of
the Company at the forthcoming forty-seventh Annual General Meeting. The Board is satisfied with the skills, contribution
and independent judgement that Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum and En Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah bring to the Board.
In view thereof, the Board recommends and supports their retention as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company which is tabled for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming forty-seventh Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Separation of Position of the Chairman and Managing Director
The positions of Chairman and Managing Director have always been held by different individuals. There is a clear division
of responsibilities between the two roles to ensure that there is an appropriate balance of power and authority to facilitate
efficiency and expedite decision making.
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REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE (CONTINUED)
Separation of Position of the Chairman and Managing Director (continued)
Currently, Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock, a Non-Independent Executive Director, chairs the Board while
the position of Managing Director is held by Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong. The Chairman is primarily responsible
for ensuring the effective conduct of the Board whilst the Managing Director oversees the day to day management and
running of the Group and the implementation of Board’s decisions and policies.
The Board notes Recommendation 3.5 of the MCCG 2012 also recommends that the Chairman of the Board to be a nonexecutive member of the Board and in the event, the Chairman is not an Independent Director, the Board must comprise
a majority of Independent Directors. The Company’s Chairman, Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock, is an
executive member of the Board and is not an Independent Director by virtue of his substantial interest in the Group.
As the Chairman has a significant relevant interest in the Company, he is well placed to act on behalf of shareholders and
in their best interest. In view of that, the Board does not recommend the necessity of nominating an Independent NonExecutive Chairman at this juncture.

Board Composition and Balance
The Board currently consists of four (4) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
composition of the Board complies with paragraph 15.02 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities. A brief description of the
background of each Director is disclosed in the Profile of Directors on pages 4 to 6.
The Group is led and controlled by an experience Board, many of whom have intimate knowledge of business. The
management of the Group’s business, implementation of policies and day-to-day running of the business is delegated to
the Executive Directors. The Independent Non-Executive Directors provide unbiased and independent views to safeguard
the interests of shareholders.
There is balance in the Board because of the presence of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors who are of the
caliber necessary to carry sufficient weight on Board decisions thus enabling adequate Board representation of the
interest of minority shareholders. Although all the Directors have an equal responsibility for the Group’s operation, the
role of these Independent Non-Executive Directors is particularly important in ensuring that the strategies proposed by
the executive management are fully discussed and examined, and take account of the long term interests, not only of
the shareholders, but also of employees, customers, suppliers and the many communities in which the Group conducts
business.
En Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah acts as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. Any concerns concerning the Group
may be conveyed to him.
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FOSTER COMMITMENT
Time Commitment
The Board meets at least four (4) times a year, with additional meetings convened when necessary. All Board members
bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources, and standards of conduct. The
Non-Executive Directors are all independent.
During the year ended 31st December 2016, five (5) Board meetings were held. Every Director attended a majority of the
Board meetings held during his tenure in the period. Details of the Board meetings and the attendance of the Directors
are set out on page 94. The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling
their roles and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.
The Directors are required to submit an update on their other directorships and shareholdings to the Company Secretary.
Such information is used to monitor the number of directorship held by the Directors. Each member of the Board
must not hold more than five directorships in public listed companies. This is in compliance with the MMLR of Bursa
Securities which states that Directors should not sit on the Boards for more than five listed companies to ensure that
their commitment and have the time to focus and fulfill their roles and responsibility effectively.

Directors Training
As an integral element of the process of appointing new Directors, the Nomination Committee ensures that new Board
members are given every opportunity to familiarise themselves with the structure, operations and types of businesses
of the Group.
All the Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme conducted by Research Institute of Investment
Analysts Malaysia and completed the Continuing Education Programmes (“CEP”) within the timeframe. The Board is
regularly updated by the Company Secretary on the latest update or amendments on the MMLR of Bursa Securities and
other regulatory requirements relating to the discharge of the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The external auditors
also brief the Board members on any changes to the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards that affect the Group’s
financial statement during the financial period under review. The Directors will also attend training endorsed by Bursa
Securities to keep abreast with developments in the capital markets.
The training programme and seminars attended by Directors during the financial year ended 31st December 2016
includes:

Conference/Seminar/Workshop/Training

Organiser/Venue

Date

Future of Auditor Reporting – The Game Changer for Boardroom

Bursa Malaysia Berhad,
Exchange Square, KL

9th March 2016

Risk Management Programme – I am Ready to Manage Risks

Bursa Malaysia Berhad,
Exchange Square, KL

4th August 2016

Enhanced Understanding of Risk Management and Internal
Control for CFO, IA & RO

Kuala Lumpur Convention
Centre, KL

18th October 2016
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UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING
Compliance with Applicable Financial Reporting Standards
The Board is committed to presenting a fair, balanced and comprehensive financial performance and prospects in all
disclosures made to the shareholders and the general public. In addition to providing financial statements and annual
report on an annual basis to the shareholders, the Company also presents the Group’s financial results on quarterly basis
via public announcements. The Audit Committee assists the Board in scrutinising information for disclosure to ensure
accuracy, adequacy and completeness.
Prior to the presentation of the Company’s financial statements to the Board for approval and issuance to stakeholders,
Audit Committee meetings were held to review the Company’s financial statements in the presence of external auditors
and the Group’s Financial Controller. A Statements of Directors’ Responsibilities for preparing the financial statements is
set out on page 29 of this Annual Report.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company and the Group keep proper accounting records to enable
the Company and the Group to disclose, with reasonable accuracy and without any material misstatement, the financial
position, performance and cash flows of the Company and the Group as at 31st December 2016. With the assistance of
Audit Committee, the Board will ensure that the preparation of fair presentation and disclosure in the financial statements
are in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and other regulatory requirements.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, maintains a close and formal as well as transparent arrangement and relationship
with the Company’s external auditors in seeking professional advice and ensuring compliance with the accounting
standards in Malaysia. The Audit Committee meets the external auditors without the presence of the management twice
during the year under review to further discuss on the Group’s audit plans, audit findings and to exchange independent
views on the matters which require their attention. Annually, prior to the commencement of the audit engagement, the
external auditors confirm to the Audit Committee on their independence.
In addition to the above, the Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal controls, which
encompasses financial, operational, and compliance controls and risk management necessary for the Group to achieve
its corporate objectives within an acceptable risk profile.
These controls can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud. The
Board recognises that risk cannot be fully eliminated. As such, the systems, processes and procedures being put in place
are aimed at minimizing and managing them. Ongoing reviews are continuously carried out to ensure the effectiveness,
adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls in safeguarding the Company’s assets.
In assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control and accounting control procedures
of the Group, the Audit Committee reports to the Board its activities, significant results, findings and the necessary
recommendations or changes.

Assessment of Suitability and Independence of External Auditors
The scope of the external auditors is ascertained by the Audit Committee, with a twice-a-year meeting held between the
Audit Committee and the external auditors. Further information is found at the Audit Committee Report at pages 22 to 23.
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RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS
Internal Control and Risk Management
The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the internal control system of the Group, covering not only financial
controls but also controls relating to operations, compliance and risk management. The Board, in fulfilling their
responsibilities, had set-up Audit Committee and outsourced the internal audit function of the Group to independent
consulting firm to assist the Board on these matters. Information of the Group’s internal control and risk management
is presented in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control set out on pages 24 to 26 of this Annual Report.

ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURE
Corporate Disclosure Policies and Procedures
The Board acknowledges the need to inform shareholders of all material business matters affecting the Company. The
Company committed to provide shareholders with timely and equal dissemination of material information in order to
enhance the transparency and accountability.
The Board has not formalized a corporate disclosure policy but has referred to the MMLR of Bursa Securities to ensure
comprehensive, timely and accurate disclosure on the Group to the regulators, shareholders and other stakeholders.

Leverage on Information Technology for Effective Dissemination of Information
The Company has established a website – www.hil.com.my for shareholder and the public to access for information,
including the announcements made by the Company. The Company’s website incorporate an Investor Relations section
which provides all relevant information on the Company and is accessible by the public. This investor Relations section
enhances the Investor Relations function by including all announcements made by the Company, annual reports as well
as the financial information of the Company.
The Company’s website has a “Contact Us” section where shareholders and potential investors may direct their enquiries
on the Company. The Company’s customer services team will endeavour to reply to these queries in the shortest possible
time.
The announcement of the quarterly financial result is also made via Bursa Securities website at www.bursamalaysia.
com immediately after the Board’s approval. This is important in ensuring equal and fair access to information by the
investing public.

STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS
Encourage Shareholder Participation at General Meetings
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company represent the main venue for communication between the shareholders
and the Company. Shareholders are encourage to attend and participate at these meetings.
A copy of the Annual Report and the notice of the AGM are sent to all shareholders at least 21 days before the AGM, to
allow shareholders additional time to go through the Annual Report and make the necessary attendance and voting
arrangements. The notice of AGM is also published in a nationally circulated daily newspaper. The notice of AGM provides
information to shareholders with regard to details of the agendas to be presented at the AGM. Each item of special
business included in the notice of AGM will be accompanied by a full explanation on the effects of a proposed resolution.
During the general meeting, shareholders are at liberty to raise questions or seek clarification on the agenda items of the
general meeting from the Company’s Directors. Where appropriate, the Board will undertake to provide written answer
to any questions that cannot be readily answered at the meeting.
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STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
Encourage Shareholder Participation at General Meetings (continued)
To further promote participation of members through proxy(ies), which is in line with the insertion of Paragraph 7.21
of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the Company had sought shareholders’ approval to amend its Articles of Association
to include explicitly the right of proxies to speak at general meetings, to allow a member who is an exempt authorized
nominee to appoint multiple proxies for each omnibus account it holds and expressly disallow any restriction on proxy’s
qualification.

Poll Voting
Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, all resolutions set out in the notice of any general meeting
held on or after 1st July 2016 shall be voted by poll. An independent scrutineer will be appointed to validate the votes cast
at general meeting. The outcome of the resolutions will be announced to Bursa Securities on the same day of the meeting.

Effective Communication and Proactive Engagements with Shareholders
In maintaining the commitment to effective communication with shareholders, the Group adopts the practice of
comprehensive, timely and continuing disclosures of information to its shareholders as well as to the general investing
public. The practice of disclosure of information is not just established to comply with requirements of the MMLR of Bursa
Securities pertaining to continuing disclosures, it also adopts the best practices as recommended in MCCG 2012 with
regard to strengthening engagement and communication with shareholders. Where possible and applicable, the Group
also provides additional disclosure of information on a voluntary basis. The Group believes that consistently maintaining
a high level of disclosure and extensive communication with its shareholders is vital to shareholders and investors to
make informed investment decisions.
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Audit Committee Report
Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises the following members:
Mat Ripen bin Mat Elah			
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum			
Ooi Hock Guan 			

Chairman (Independent/Non-Executive Director)
Member (Independent/Non-Executive Director)
Member (Independent/Non-Executive Director)

Meetings
During the financial year ended 31st December 2016, the Audit Committee convened five (5) meetings. Attendance at
all meetings met the requisite quorum in which the majority of the members present were Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the meetings are held accordingly and duly minuted. The
meetings were appropriately structured through the use of agendas, which were distributed to members with sufficient
notification.
Details of Audit Committee meetings held during the financial year ended 31st December 2016 are as follows:

Date		Place
25-Feb-16
Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
14-Apr-16
Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
25-May-16		Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
25-Aug-16		Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
23-Nov-16		Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee during the financial year ended 31st December 2016 is as follows:

Name of Audit Committee		

Number of Meetings Attended

Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah		
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum		
Ooi Hock Guan
		

4/5
4/5
5/5

The Chairman of the Audit Committee verbally briefs the Board on the proceedings of the Audit Committee meeting at the
Board meetings held subsequent to the Audit Committee meetings.
Other members of senior management are invited to attend Audit Committee meetings. The internal and external auditors
are also invited to attend Audit Committee meetings to present their audit plan and audit findings.
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Activities
The Audit Committee has undertaken the following activities during the financial year ended 31st December 2016:
1. Ensured sufficient audit coverage for all the Group’s business and activities;
2. Discussed and reviewed the scope of work and audit plan for the financial year ended 31st December 2016, including
any significant issues and concerns arising from audit;
3. Reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial reports and year-end financial statements before they were presented to
the Board for approval;
4. Discussed and reviewed with the external auditors, the applicability and the impact of the new accounting standards
and new financial reporting regime issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standard Board;
5. Reviewed the audited Group financial statements and recommend it to the Board for approval before release to Bursa
Securities and its shareholders;
6. Reviewed the internal audit plan to ensure adequate scope and coverage of the Group’s activities based on identified
and assessed key risk areas; and
7. Reviewed audit reports issued by internal auditors and took note of their observations, recommendations and
Management’s responses thereto.

Internal Audit Function
The internal audit functions have been outsourced to a professional firm reporting directly to the Audit Committee.
The primary role of the internal auditors is to inter-alia, assist the Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to:
1. Undertakes the internal audit of the Group’s operating units; ascertaining the extent of the units compliance with
the established internal control procedures, policies and statutory requirements; highlighting the weaknesses and
recommending improvements to the existing systems of control;
2. Assist in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s processes for controlling its activities;
3. Provide independent, systematic and objective evaluation on the state of internal control within the Group; and
4. Perform such other functions as requested by the Audit Committee.
The cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2016 amounted to
RM20,000.
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Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control
The Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which
outlines the nature and scope of internal controls and risk management of the Group during the financial year ended 31st
December 2016. This statement is prepared pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors recognises the importance of good risk management framework and sound internal control
systems, in order to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Groups’ assets. The Board of Directors maintains full
control over all internal controls within the Group, covering aspects of operational, compliance as well as financial in
nature. In view of inherit risks, the Groups’ internal control system are designed to reduce rather than eliminate possible
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors has established an organisational structure with clearly defined lines of authorities and job
responsibilities to enhance accountability.
An informal risk management process is carried out throughout the year, for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group. The Board of Directors has empowered the Managing Director, who formed various
task forces/project committees comprising Executive Directors and key senior management personnel to assist him, in
reviewing and managing the significant risks faced by the various operating units to achieve their respective business
objectives of the Group. The Managing Director will inform the Board of Directors of any pertinent matters, which require
decision-making at Board level.
The Managing Director and his senior management team, through their day-to-day involvement in the operations of the
Group, ensure that ongoing maintenance, monitoring, reviewing and reporting arrangement have been put in place to
provide reasonable assurance that the structure of controls and operations is appropriate to the Group.

Key Features of Internal Control System
The key features of the internal control systems are:
•

Written policies and procedures for the Group are set out in accordance to Certified Quality Management System.
The UK/US National Quality Assurance Limited (NQA) has awarded the TS16949:2009, QS 9000, ISO 9001:2008, ISO
14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2007 Environmental Management Systems certification to the Group to mark the
Group’s quality achievement and accreditation.

•

Established organisational structure.

•

Clear lines of authorities and well defined responsibilities for all personnel of the Group. Strict authorisation and
approval procedures have been established within top management.

•

Procedure has been established for hiring and termination of employees and an annual performance appraisal are
in place to ensure employees are competent to carry out their respective duty. Training and development programs
is exist to enhance employee knowledge, skills and abilities required for effective job performance.

•

Regular and open communication between management, internal auditor and the Board of Directors on matters
relating to risk and control.
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Key Features of Internal Control System (continued)
•

Group quarterly financial reports are reviewed by Audit Committee to ensure the financial statements are properly
drawn up in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and other regulatory requirements in Malaysia so
as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at the end of financial year.
The Group financial statement is presented to Board and subsequently approved before release to Bursa Malaysia.

•

Regular group management meetings are held as and when necessary to raise issues, discuss, review and monitor
the business development and resolve operational and management issues and review financial performances
against the business plans, the targets and the budgets, if any.

•

Computerised financial system used to compile and consolidate data to generate monthly management reports,
which assist management in identifying key changes and monitoring performance.

•

Group assets are covered with sufficient insurance to ensure assets are protected against any mishap and other
perils that could result in material loss. A yearly policy renewal exercise is undertaken in which Management reviews
the coverage based on the current fixed assets inventory and the respective net book values and “replacement value”.

•

Management ensures that safety regulations within the Group are being considered, implemented and adhered to
accordingly.

Internal Audit Function
The Group’s internal audit function, which is outsourced to a professional firm, assists the Board and the Audit Committee
in providing independent assessment of adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. To
ensure independence from Management, the internal auditor has direct reporting lines to the Audit Committee.
A high level assessment of the Group’s business risk was carried out by the internal audit function to facilitate the
preparation of the internal audit plan. The audit plan was approved by the Audit Committee and the status of the audit
plan are presented to the Audit Committee. With the adoption of a risk-based approach, the internal audit function is able
to focus its work on principal risk areas and processes of the business operation units. During the course of carrying out
their reviews, full cooperation and unrestricted access to all information was given in order to discharge their duties.
During the financial year, the internal auditors carried out reviews on the following areas to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls:
•
•
•

Cash and bank management
Sales and collections
Property, plant and equipment

The internal auditors also carried out follow up audits to ensure that the necessary corrective actions have been
undertaken to address the control gaps noted.
The internal auditors have identified some weaknesses in the internal control and these together with improvement
recommendations have been reported to the Audit Committee. However, none of the weaknesses have resulted in any
material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s Annual Report.
The system of internal control will continue to be reviewed, enhanced or updated in line with changes in the operating
environment. The Board will seek regular assurance on the continuity and effectiveness of the internal control system
through independent appraisals by the internal auditors. The Board is of the view that there is ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group and the internal control systems are in place
and have not resulted on any material misstatement, loss, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure
on the Group’s Annual Report.
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Review of the Statement by External Auditors
As required by paragraph 15.23 of MMLR of Bursa Securities, the external auditors have reviewed this statement for
inclusion in the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31st December 2016.

Board Assessment
The Board has received assurance from the Managing Director and the management that the Group’s risk management
and internal control system is operating adequately and effectively.
The Board is of the view that the system of risk management and internal controls in place are satisfactory to protect the
Group’s interest and that of its stakeholders, particularly on enhancing shareholder value.
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Additional Compliance Information
1. Utilisation of Proceeds
No proceeds were raised by the Company for any corporate exercise during the financial year.

2. Audit and Non-audit fees
For the financial year ended 31st December 2016, the amounts of audit and non-audit fees paid or payable by the
Company and the Group to external auditors are as follows:

Audit fees
Non-audit fees

Group (RM)

Company (RM)

106,405

30,000

Nil

Nil

3. Recurrent related party transaction of a revenue nature
There was no recurrent related party transaction of a revenue nature, which requires profit guarantee.

4. Material contracts
None of the Directors and/or major shareholders has any material contracts (not being contracts entered into the
ordinary course of business) with the Company and/or its subsidiaries either still subsisting at the end of the financial
year ended 31st December 2016 or entered into since the end of the previous financial year.
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Statement on
Corporate Social Responsibilities
The Group acknowledges that Corporate Social Responsibilities (“CSR”) is an important aspect of its business. The Group
continues to undertake responsible practices that impact the society and environment in a positive manner and to
inculcate a culture of responsibility in all aspects of its business. The CSR initiatives undertaken by the Group during the
financial year are summarized below:

Employees and Workplace
The Company strongly believes that human capital is the most important value to an organization. In retaining the best
talents, the Company continually provides employees with education and training. Employee Training and Development
which is carried out internally and externally aimed to equipping employees with skills and knowledge related to projects
and tasks handle by them so that these may be executed to meet customers’ needs and expectation.
In recognition of their services and create amiable workplace for employees, the Group organized several events
throughout the year such as annual dinner & recreational activities for the employees.
The Group has a fundamental responsibility and commitment to ensure that all employees work in a safe and healthy
environment. Representatives from all levels attend specific Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)
courses conducted by external trainers to enhance their understanding and responsibility on employees’ health and
safety. These programmes focus on identifying common hazards and unsafe work practices and implementing corrective
actions to improve the work environment. In compliance with the OSHA requirement, First Aid and CPR training sessions
are also organized to help staff and workers understand their role as Emergency First Responders. In addition, all workers
are covered by Personal Accident Insurance and Foreign Worker Workman Compensation Scheme.

Marketplace
The Group recognizes that our ability to produce consistently high quality products is critical to the success of our
business. As such, we place extensive and substantial emphasis on the ultimate quality of our products and maintain
stringent quality control throughout our manufacturing process. This enables us to produce high quality products to
satisfy the demands and expectations of highly-demanding customers.

Environment
As part of our corporate social responsibility agenda, the Group ensured strictly ongoing compliance with the
environmental laws governing plant operations, maintenance in areas relating to environmental standards, emission
standards and noise level management. This is in line with our manufacturing factories being certified as an ISO 14001
organization holder by an international body. Ongoing programmes initiated among its staff on awareness of recycling of
waste materials and continuous improvements in our manufacturing process create a greener environment.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
In respect of the audited financial statement

Directors are required by the Companies Act, 1965 to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended.
In preparing those financial statements, the Directors have:
•

Adopted applicable accounting policies and applied them consistently,

•

Make judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,

•

Ensured applicable approved accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements, and

•

Prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act, 1965. The Directors are also responsible for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the Group and of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Directors’ Report
The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.		

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the manufacture and sale of industrial and domestic
moulded plastic products. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
Group
RM

Company
RM

15,935,930

6,177,254

Owners of the Company

16,384,492

6,177,254

Non-controlling interests

(448,562)

-

15,935,930

6,177,254

Profit for the financial year
Profit attributable to:

DIVIDENDS
Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid a first and final single tier dividend of 3% or 1.5 sen per
ordinary share of RM0.50 each amounting to RM4,149,258 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a first and final single tier dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2016, of 3% or 1.5 sen per ordinary share of RM0.50 each, amounting to a dividend payable of RM4,149,260
will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this
proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of
retained profits in the financial year ending 31 December 2017.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are shown in the financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
During the financial year, the Company did not issue any new shares or debentures.			

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take up any unissued shares of
the Company.
No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any options to take up unissued shares
of the Company. At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under options. 		
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(continued)

DIRECTORS
The Directors who have held office since the date of the last report are as follows:
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock
Dato’ Setia Abdul Halim bin Dato’ Haji Abdul Rauf
Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong
Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng
Mat Ripen bin Mat Elah
Ooi Hock Guan
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Sak Cheng Lum
In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Dato' Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong and Ooi
Hock Guan retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers themselves for reelection.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which
the Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.		
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than
directors' remuneration disclosed in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or related
corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial
financial interest, except for any benefit which may be deemed to have arisen from the transaction entered into the
ordinary course of business with Company in which the Director have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note
32 to the financial statements.										

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, particulars of interests of Directors who held office at the end of the
financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of
RM0.50 each in the Company
At
1.1.2016

Additions

Disposals

At
31.12.2016

33,113,566
6,668,300
3,575,600

-

(8,000,000)
-

25,113,566
6,668,300
3,575,600

173,708,974
189,483,740
189,483,740

-

(8,000,000)
(8,000,000)

173,708,974
181,483,740
181,483,740

Shareholdings in the
name of the Director
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong
@ Ng Thian Hock
Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong
Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng
Shareholdings in which the
Director is deemed to have an interest
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong
@ Ng Thian Hock
Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong
Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued)
Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
in Dalta Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“Dalta”)
At
1.1.2016

Additions

Disposals

At
31.12.2016

7,000,000

-

-

7,000,000

3,000,000

-

-

3,000,000

Shareholdings in the
name of the Director
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong
@ Ng Thian Hock
Shareholdings in which the
Director is deemed to have an interest
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong
@ Ng Thian Hock

By virtue of their interests in shares in the Company, Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock, Dato’ Milton Norman
Ng Kwee Leong and Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng are also deemed interested in shares in the subsidiary companies
to the extent that the Company has an interest.
Other than disclosed above, according to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, the Directors in office at the end of
the financial year did not hold any interest in shares in the Company or in shares in its related corporations during the
financial year.												

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
Before the statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group
and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:
(a)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance
for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and							

(b)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business their values as
shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company had been written down to an amount which they
might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(a)

which whould render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(b)

which would render the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading; or						

(c)

which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

(d)

not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would
render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.						
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (Continued)
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(a)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b)

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

In the opinion of the Directors:
(a)

no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ablility of the Group or of the
Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due; and

(b)

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the
Group or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

HOLDING COMPANY
The Directors regard Dalta Industries Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia, as the holding company.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs. Cheng & Co, are retiring and not seeking for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution.

DATO’ MILTON NORMAN NG KWEE LEONG
Managing Director

Shah Alam
12 April 2017

MALCOLM JEREMY NG KWEE SENG
Director
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Statement by Directors

Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act, 2016

We, Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong and Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng, being two of the Directors of HIL INDUSTRIES
BERHAD, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements are drawn up in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year then-ended.										
The supplementary information set out in Note 36 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants, and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.		
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution.
12 April 2017

DATO’ MILTON NORMAN NG KWEE LEONG
Managing Director

MALCOLM JEREMY NG KWEE SENG
Director

Shah Alam

Statutory Declaration

Pursuant to Section 251(1) of the Companies Act, 2016

I, Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of HIL
INDUSTRIES BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements are, to the best of
my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and
by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.						
						
						
				
						
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
)
abovenamed MALCOLM JEREMY NG KWEE
)
SENG at Puchong in the State of
)
Selangor Darul Ehsan on
)
Before me,

MALCOLM JEREMY NG KWEE SENG
Director
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Hil Industries Berhad

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Hil Industries Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out
on pages 14 to 95.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year
then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By- Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming up our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
Valuation of goodwill is a key audit matter because significant judgement is required in determining the recoverable
amount of goodwill. We focused on the goodwill on consolidation of a indirect subsidiary company; Pembinaan
Laksamana Sdn Bhd given that it represents 83% of the Group’s total goodwill.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedure performed in this area included, amongst others:
(a) Assessed the reliability of the Management’s forecast through the review of past trends of actual financial
performance against previous forecast results.
(b) Verified pre-tax discount rate by comparing to the weighted average cost of capital of the subsidiary company and
relevant risk factors.
(c) Reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate and growth rate to further
challenge the appropriateness of the Group’s key assumptions used.
2. Recoverability of trade receivables
As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of the Group and of the Company that were past due and not impaired
amounted to RM9,028,321 and RM5,970,956 respectively. Ageing analysis of trade receivables is disclosed in Note
20 (a) to the financial statements.				
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
2. Recoverability of trade receivables (Continued)		
Management recognised allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables based on specific known facts or
circumstances on customers’ ability to pay.
The determination of whether trade receivables are recoverable involve significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedure performed in this area included, amongst others:
(a) Evaluated the credit process operated by management over the recoverability of trade receivables of the Group;
(b) Critically assessed recoverability of receivables that were past due but not impaired with reference to their
historical bad debt expense, ageing profiles of the counter parties and past historical repayment trends; and
(c) Assessed cash receipts subsequent to the end of the reporting period for its effect in reducing amounts
outstanding as at end of the reporting period.
3. Revenue recognition for property development activities
The Group’s recognition of revenue from sale of development properties is largely dependent on estimated total
revenue, estimated development costs as well as the estimated stage of completion of each project.
The stage of completion is determined based on the proportion of development costs incurred for work performed
to-date compared to the estimated total development costs. 							
There is a risk that the estimated revenue, costs or margins may be different from actuals, resulting in material
variance in the amount of revenue and profit recognised in the current financial year.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedure performed in this area included, amongst others:
(a) Agreed a sample of costs incurred to date to invoice and/or progress claim, checked that they were allocated to
the appropriate construction site, and met the definition of development costs;
(b) Tested the Group’s controls by checking for evidence of reviews and approvals over development cost, setting
budgets and authorising and recording of actual costs incurred;
(c) Compared the architect certificate against stage of completion of each project to ascertain the reasonableness of
the percentage of completion recognised in the profit or loss; and
(d) Challenged the assumptions used in deriving at the estimated total of development costs. This includes comparing
the actual margins achieved of previous similar completed projects and compared the estimated cost to suppliers’
agreements or tenders and considered allowance for cost increase included in these estimates.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the annual report and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this annual
report we are required to report that fact.
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Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the
Company’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and
its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the
Act.
(b) We have considered the accounts and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as
auditors, which are indicated in note 14 to the financial statements, being accounts that have been included in the
consolidated accounts.
(c) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those
purposes.
(d) The audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment made
under Section 174(3) of the Act.
Other Reporting Responsibilities
The supplementary information set out in Note 36 is disclosed to meet the requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary
information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies
Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of
this report.

CHENG & CO
AF : 0886
Chartered Accountants
Kuala Lumpur

HONG THUAN BOON
2233/03/18 (J)
Chartered Accountant

39

Statements of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
Group
Note
Revenue
Cost of sales

4

2016
RM

Company
2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

97,343,429 120,112,666
(68,999,635) (88,929,059)

53,217,037
(43,295,438)

69,993,107
(53,467,304)

28,343,794

31,183,607

9,921,599

16,525,803

3,791,079
1,393,314

4,026,676
2,572,488

3,024,790
1,446,783

2,995,780
2,653,777

Other items of expense:
– Selling and marketing expenses
– Administrative expenses
– Other expenses

(3,162,169)
(7,028,038)
(932,072)

(4,054,353)
(8,845,045)
(16,683)

(2,364,595)
(4,041,699)
(302,102)

(2,712,279)
(4,692,620)
326,128

Profit from operations

22,405,908

24,866,690

7,684,776

15,096,589

Gross profit
Other items of income:
– Interest income
– Other income

5

Finance costs

6

(67,110)

(64,228)

(67,110)

(64,228)

Profit before tax

7

22,338,798

24,802,462

7,617,666

15,032,361

Income tax expense

11

(6,402,868)

(7,614,456)

(1,440,412)

(3,277,748)

15,935,930

17,188,006

6,177,254

11,754,613

(787,701)

4,164,721

-

-

15,148,229

21,352,727

6,177,254

11,754,613

Profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences for
foreign operations
Total comprehensive income for the financial
year
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Group
Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

RM

RM

RM

RM

16,384,492

17,198,948

6,177,254

11,754,613

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit for the financial year

(448,562)

(10,942)

-

-

15,935,930

17,188,006

6,177,254

11,754,613

15,596,791

21,363,669

6,177,254

11,754,613

(448,562)

(10,942)

-

-

15,148,229

21,352,727

6,177,254

11,754,613

5.92

6.22

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income
for the financial year
Basic earnings per
share attributable to
owners of the Company (sen)

10

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
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Statements of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2016

Group
Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

RM

RM

RM

RM

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

12

60,261,256

68,968,477

44,349,371

51,080,328

Investment properties

13

23,577,488

23,640,527

-

-

Investments in subsidiary companies

14

-

-

40,717,871

40,667,869

Other investments

15

201,692

195,415

-

-

Goodwill

16

4,932,358

4,932,358

-

-

88,972,794

97,736,777

85,067,242

91,748,197

Current assets

Inventories

17

14,800,371

11,906,469

4,018,888

4,284,685

Property development costs

18

70,563,379

69,004,960

-

-

Accrued billings

19

7,906,318

10,017,750

-

-

Trade and other receivables

20

30,544,299

36,431,182

97,286,557

113,040,980

Prepaid expenses

1,110,606

867,411

736,265

570,794

Current tax assets

29,873

33,974

-

-

Deposits with licensed banks

21

137,709,246

85,775,559

105,319,982

82,524,155

Cash and bank balances

22

14,828,635

45,706,371

1,285,963

5,670,157

277,492,727

259,743,676

208,647,655

206,090,771

366,465,521

357,480,453

293,714,897

297,838,968

TOTAL ASSETS
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Group
Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

RM

RM

RM

RM

139,357,072

139,357,072

139,357,072

139,357,072

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

23

Share premium

23(b)

1,280,872

1,280,872

1,280,872

1,280,872

Treasury shares

23(c)

(947,224)

(947,224)

(947,224)

(947,224)

308,161

308,161

-

-

Capital reserve
Currency translation reserve

24

5,205,500

5,993,201

-

-

Retained profits

25

175,543,628

162,991,027

121,284,269

119,256,273

320,748,009

308,983,109

260,974,989

258,946,993

908,361

1,634,290

-

-

321,656,370

310,617,399

260,974,989

258,946,993

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Finance lease liabilities

26

713,032

1,119,876

713,032

1,119,876

Deferred tax liabilities

27

21,288,274

22,455,232

6,124,871

7,291,829

22,001,306

23,575,108

6,837,903

8,411,705

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

28

21,113,688

21,555,088

25,164,820

29,348,477

Finance lease liabilities

26

406,844

460,695

406,844

460,695

1,287,313

1,272,163

330,341

671,098

22,807,845

23,287,946

25,902,005

30,480,270

44,809,151

46,863,054

32,739,908

38,891,975

366,465,521

357,480,453

293,714,897

297,838,968

Current tax liabilities
Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.

At 31 December 2015

Dividends on ordinary shares

Transactions with owners:

30

-

-

(947,224)

-

-

(947,224)

(947,224)

-

-

-

(947,224)

Treasury
shares
RM

308,161

-

-

308,161

308,161

-

-

-

308,161

Capital
reserve
RM

5,993,201

-

4,164,721

1,828,480

5,205,500

-

-

(787,701)

5,993,201

Currency
translation
reserve
RM
Total
RM

(4,149,258)

317,367

15,596,791

(4,149,258)

21,363,669

162,991,027 308,983,109

(4,149,258)

17,198,948

149,941,337 291,768,698

175,543,628 320,748,009

(4,149,258)

317,367

16,384,492

162,991,027 308,983,109

Retained
profits
RM

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.

139,357,072 1,280,872

-

-

139,357,072 1,280,872

At 1 January 2015

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the financial year

139,357,072 1,280,872

-

-

-

At 31 December 2016

-

Dividends on ordinary shares

-

-

30

Share
premium
RM

139,357,072 1,280,872

Increase / (Decrease) in equity
interest in subsidiary company

Transactions with owners:

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the financial year

At 1 January 2016

Note

Share
capital
RM

Attributable to owners of the Company

1,634,290

-

(10,942)

1,645,232

908,361

-

(277,367)

(448,562)

1,634,290

Noncontrolling
interests
RM

310,617,399

(4,149,258)

21,352,727

293,413,930

321,656,370

(4,149,258)

40,000

15,148,229

310,617,399

Total
equity
RM
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Changes in Equity
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Note
At 1 January 2016
Total comprehensive income
for the financial year

Non-distributable
Share
Share
capital
premium
RM
RM

Treasury
shares
RM

Distributable
Retained
profits
RM

Total
equity
RM

139,357,072

1,280,872

(947,224)

119,256,273

258,946,993

-

-

-

6,177,254

6,177,254

-

-

-

(4,149,258)

(4,149,258)

139,357,072

1,280,872

(947,224)

121,284,269

260,974,989

Transactions with owners:
Dividends on ordinary shares

30

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2015
Total comprehensive income
for the financial year

139,357,072

1,280,872

(947,224)

111,650,918

251,341,638

-

-

-

11,754,613

11,754,613

-

-

-

(4,149,258)

(4,149,258)

139,357,072

1,280,872

(947,224)

119,256,273

258,946,993

Transactions with owners:
Dividends on ordinary shares
At 31 December 2015

30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
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Group
Note

Company
2016
2015
RM
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

22,338,798

24,802,462

7,617,666

15,032,361

9,292,125

9,518,736

6,734,407

6,878,775

63,039

63,039

-

-

-

(79,450)

(60,000)

(50,000)

6,017

83,095

-

-

67,110

64,228

67,110

64,228

Interest income

(3,791,079)

(4,026,676)

(3,024,790)

(2,995,780)

Net unrealised foreign exchange gains

(1,263,149)

(2,226,510)

(986,090)

(2,293,693)

26,712,861

28,198,924

10,348,303

16,635,891

Inventories

(2,893,902)

3,621,401

265,797

(83,349)

Property development costs

(1,558,419)

(3,963,748)

-

-

Trade and other receivables

8,201,764

10,859,206

15,729,370

(2,760,470)

Prepaid expenses

(243,195)

699,830

(165,471)

124,135

Trade and other payables

(669,014)

(11,274,532)

(4,183,657)

1,192,461

29,550,095

28,141,081

21,994,342

15,108,668

(67,110)

(64,228)

(67,110)

(64,228)

3,791,079

4,026,676

3,024,790

2,995,780

(7,558,530)

(8,530,204)

(2,948,127)

(3,832,914)

7,955

32,322

-

-

25,723,489

23,605,647

22,003,895

14,207,306

(844,786)

(1,536,273)

(3,450)

(1,522,135)

-

117,495

60,000

50,000

Acquisition of subsidiary company

-

-

(2)

-

Subscription of shares in existing
subsidiary company

-

-

(50,000)

-

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Interest expense

Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital changes:

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Interest received
Tax paid
Tax recovered
Net cash from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

29

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Issuance of shares in existing subsidiary company

40,000

-

-

-

Purchase of other investments

(6,277)

(5,972)

-

-

(811,063)

(1,424,750)

6,548

(1,472,135)

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities
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Group
Note

Company
2016
2015
RM
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

(460,695)

(367,547)

(460,695)

(367,547)

(4,149,258)
(4,609,953)

(4,149,258)
(4,516,805)

(4,149,258)
(4,609,953)

(4,149,258)
(4,516,805)

20,302,473

17,664,092

17,400,490

8,218,366

131,481,930

108,170,726

88,194,312

77,600,724

753,478

5,647,112

1,011,143

2,375,222

152,537,881

131,481,930

106,605,945

88,194,312

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of finance lease liabilities
Dividends paid on ordinary shares
Net cash used in financing activities

30

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

31

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

												
Hil Industries Berhad (“the Company” or “HIB”) is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in
Malaysia and listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.						
The principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah
Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.									
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the manufacture and sale of industrial and
domestic moulded plastic products. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 14.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.		
The Directors regard Dalta Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“Dalta”), a company incorporated in Malaysia, as the holding
company.											
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2017.			
		

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

												

2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards ('MFRSs"), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
The accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are consistent with those adopted in the
previous financial year, except in current financial year, the Group and the Company adopted all the new and
revised standards which are effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The adoption
of these new and revised standards did not have any impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company.
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new and revised standards have
been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") but are not yet effective and have not been
adopted by the Group and the Company:
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 12
Amendments to MFRS 107
Amendments to MFRS 112

Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities				
(Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle)		
Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure initiative
Income taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
MFRS 9
Amendments to MFRS 1
Amendments to MFRS 2
Amendments to MFRS 128
Amendments to MFRS 140

Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in July 2014)
First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
(Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle)
Share-based payments - Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
(Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle)
Investment Properties - Transfers of Investment Property		

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
MFRS 16

Leases

48

Notes to the Financial Statements
(continued)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
2.1 Statement of compliance (Continued)
The initial application of the abovementioned standards are not expected to have any material impact to the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company except as mentioned below:
MFRS 9, Financial Instruments
In November 2014, MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of
the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and all previous versions of MFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
information is not compulsory. The adoption of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement
of the Group's and of the Company's financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group's and of the Company financial liabilities.

2.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is also the Company's functional currency.

2.4 Use of judgements and estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.
The Directors are of the opinion that any instances of application of judgements are not expected to have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
economic useful lives. The Directors estimate the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be
within 3 to 57 years. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges
could be revised. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 12.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
2.4 Use of judgements and estimates (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Revenue recognition of property development activities
The Group recognises property development revenue and expenses in profit or loss by using the stage of
completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that property development
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total property development costs.
Significant estimation is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the property
development costs incurred, the estimated total property development revenue and costs, as well as the
recoverability of the development projects. In making the estimation, the Group evaluates by relying on past
experience and the work of specialists. The carrying amount of property development costs is disclosed in
Notes 18 and 19.
(c) Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors
such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the receivables and default or
significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount
of loans and receivables is disclosed in Note 20.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
companies as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent
accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:
· Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);
· Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and
· The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company considers the
following in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power
over the investee:
· The size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;
· Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
· Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
· Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders' meetings.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
The resulting difference is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference between:
• the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest, and
• the previous carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest
Gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. The subsidiary's cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable,
transferred directly to retained earnings. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial recognition of the investment.

3.2 Transactions with non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiary companies not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
owners of the Company, and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary company that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary
company. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

3.3 Foreign currencies
(a) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the
reporting date, except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at date that the fair value was determined.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.3 Foreign currencies (Continued)
(a) Foreign currency transactions (Continued)
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences
arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments or a financial instrument designated as
a hedge of currency risk, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.
In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains
and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign currency
translation reserve ("FCTR") in equity.
(b) Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia
The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from business combinations
before 1 January 2012 (the date when the Group first adopted MFRS) which are treated as assets and
liabilities of the Company. The income and expenses of foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in
hyperinflationary economies, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the date of the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FCTR in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate
share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation
is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the
FCTR related to that foreign operation is reclassifced to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation
while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reclassified profit or loss.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, pland and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial year in which they
are incurred.
Freehold land is not depreciated as it has an infinite life.
Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset carried in
the revaluation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the
assets, or the revalued amount, to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Leasehold land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles, equipment and furniture

43 - 57 years
50 years
4 - 13 years
3 - 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the financial year the asset is derecognised.

3.5 Investment properties
Investment properties are properties which are owned or held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both. These include land held for a currently undetermined future use. Properties that are occupied by the
companies in the Group are accounted for as owner-occupied rather than as investment properties. Investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, consistent
with the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment as stated in Note 3.4.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
financial year of disposal or retirement.

3.6 Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstances is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

3.7 Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following:
· Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);
· Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and
· The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU
or groups of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or
groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a
pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued where the
revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit
or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase. Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

3.9 Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition, and the
categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for
trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives
(including separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains
or net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange differences,
interest and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other
income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial
assets that are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets
that are not held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the
settlement date.
(b) Loans and receivables
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified
as loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.
(c) Held-to-maturity investments
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity
investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity within
12 months after the reporting date which are classified as current.
(d) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the three preceding categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses
from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
impairment loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be
realised within 12 months after the reporting date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.9 Financial assets (Continued)
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the
Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.						
				

3.10 Impairment of financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired.
(a) Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been
incurred, the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of
financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the Company’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account.
When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
(b) Unquoted equity securities carried at cost
If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment where
the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer) that an
impairment loss on financial assets carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are
not reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer
or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market are considerations to determine whether
there is objective evidence that investment securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
impaired.
If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in the
subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

3.12 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in, first
out method.
The cost of raw materials and consumables includes the original cost of purchase and other incidental costs
required to bring the inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads.
The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises cost associated with the acquisition of land, direct
costs and appropriate proportions of common costs.

3.13 Property development costs
Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.
When the outcome of the development activity can be reliably estimated, property development revenue and
expenses are recognised in profit or loss by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the proportion that property development costs incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total property development costs.
When the outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated, property development revenue is
recognised only to the extent of property development costs incurred that is probable will be recoverable, and
property development costs on properties sold are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
Any expected loss on a development project is recognised as an expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.13 Property development costs (Continued)
Property development costs not recognised as an expense is recognised as an asset and is stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
Where revenue recognised in profit or loss exceeds billings to purchasers, the balance is shown as accrued
billings under current assets. Where billings to purchasers exceed revenue recognised in profit or loss, the
balance is shown as progress billings under current liabilities.

3.14 Share capital and share issuance expenses
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction
costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the
period in which they are declared.

3.15 Treasury shares
When shares of the Company, that have not been cancelled, recognised as equity are reacquired, the amount
of consideration paid is recognised directly in equity. Reacquired shares are classified as treasury shares and
presented as a deduction from total equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of treasury shares. When treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between
the sales consideration and the carrying amount is recognised in equity.

3.16 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

3.17 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group and the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group and the Company determines the classification of
its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilties not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. Financial
liabilities are classfied as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group and the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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3.17 Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss.
(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existiing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

3.18 Leased assets
(a) Finance leases
Leases in terms of which the Group or the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial recognition of the leased asset is measured at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent
lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the
lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and equipment.
(b) Operating leases
Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases and, except for property interest held under operating lease,
the leased assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position. Property interest held under
an operating lease, which is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the reporting period in which they are incurred. Leasehold land which in substance in an
operating lease is classified as prepaid lease payments.
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3.19 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the
activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditure and borrowing
costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their
intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

3.20 Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the financial year, using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous financial years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.21 Employee benefits
(a) Short term benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by employees.
(b) Defined contribution plans
The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it
has operations. The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund
in Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.
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3.22 Revenue recognition
(a) Income from sale of products and performance of services
Sales are recognised upon delivery of products and customer acceptance, if any, or performance of services,
net of sales tax, discounts and returns.
(b) Revenue from property development projects
Revenue from property development projects and sale of development properties which are under
development is recognised on the percentage of completion method, where the outcome of the development
projects can be reliably estimated.
(c) Revenue from property letting
Rental income from properties is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term
of the lease.
(d) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

3.23 Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, which in this case is the Managing Director of the Company, to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

4. REVENUE
Group

Sale of goods
Services rendered
Property development revenue
Rental income from land and buildings

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

62,959,489

84,508,713

53,217,037

69,993,107

94,225

76,181

-

-

32,699,562

34,340,345

-

-

1,590,153

1,187,427

-

-

97,343,429

120,112,666

53,217,037

69,993,107

5. INTEREST INCOME
Group

Interest income from loans and receivables

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

3,791,079

4,026,676

3,024,790

2,995,780
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6. FINANCE COSTS
Group and Company
2016
RM

2015
RM

– Bank overdrafts

5,421

939

– Finance leases

61,689

63,289

67,110

64,228

Interest expense on:

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

– Audit fees to Cheng & Co

69,600

58,300

30,000

30,000

– Audit fees to other group auditors

36,805

34,043

-

-

9,292,125

9,518,736

6,734,407

6,878,775

63,039

63,039

-

-

744,360

683,010

-

-

18,868,674

19,776,778

13,992,135

14,760,333

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 12)
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 13)
Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties
Employee benefits expense (Note 8)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss on trade receivables (Note 20)

6,017

(79,450)
83,095

(60,000)
-

(50,000)
-

Net foreign exchange gains
– Realised
– Unrealised
Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 9)
Rental expense for land and buildings
Rental income from land and buildings

(119,943)

(822,494)

(87,431)

(727,269)

(1,263,149)

(2,226,510)

(986,090)

(2,293,693)

2,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

987,555

989,373

387,947

421,247

(120,000)

(120,000)

(1,590,153)

(1,187,427)
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

15,983,772

16,985,126

11,901,732

12,878,942

Contributions to defined contribution plans

944,543

964,319

761,670

798,705

Social security contributions

519,963

589,133

74,937

75,389

1,420,396

1,238,200

1,253,796

1,007,297

18,868,674

19,776,778

13,992,135

14,760,333

Salaries, bonuses and allowances

Other employee benefits

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ remuneration
amounting to RM879,320 (2015: RM1,080,696) and RM879,320 (2015: RM879,320) respectively as further disclosed
in Note 9.

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

879,320

1,080,696

879,320

879,320

2,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

881,320

1,082,696

881,320

881,320

Executive directors’ remuneration (Note 8):
– Non-fee emoluments
Non-executive directors’ remuneration (Note 7):
– Fees
Total directors' remuneration (Note 32)

												

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the financial year attributable to owners of the Company
by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.
Group

Profit for the financial year attributable to owners of the Company (RM)
Number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per share (sen)

2016
RM

2015
RM

16,384,492

17,198,948

276,617,344

276,617,344

5.92

6.22

As at the end of the current financial year, the Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Accordingly, the diluted earnings per share is not presented.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

7,569,854

8,186,492

2,606,245

3,847,002

(28)

(89,206)

1,125

(86,424)

7,569,826

8,097,286

2,607,370

3,760,578

- relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences

(875,285)

(480,958)

(875,285)

(480,958)

- relating to change in tax rate

(291,673)

-

(291,673)

-

-

(1,872)

-

(1,872)

(1,166,958)

(482,830)

(1,166,958)

(482,830)

6,402,868

7,614,456

1,440,412

3,277,748

Current tax expense:
- Malaysian income tax
- (Over)/Underprovision in previous financial
years
Deferred tax (Note 27)

- Overprovision in previous financial years
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the financial year.
The explanation of the relationship between income tax expense and profit before tax is as follows:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

22,338,798

24,802,462

7,617,666

15,032,361

5,361,312

6,200,616

1,828,240

3,758,090

(246,277)

(584,912)

(282,790)

(606,074)

- different tax rates of a foreign subsidiary
company

(42,808)

290,085

-

-

- expenses not deductible for tax purposes

390,559

754,594

185,510

214,028

- utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

(1,690)

-

-

-

1,233,473

1,045,151

-

-

(291,673)

-

(291,673)

-

-

(1,872)

-

(1,872)

(28)

(89,206)

1,125

(86,424)

6,402,868

7,614,456

1,440,412

3,277,748

Numerical reconciliation of effective income
tax expense
Profit before tax
Income tax calculated at statutory tax rate of
24% (2015: 25%)
Tax effects of:
- income not subject to tax

Deferred tax assets not recognised during the
financial year
Effect of change in tax rate on opening balance
of deferred tax
Overprovision of deferred tax in previous
financial years
(Over)/Underprovision of income tax in
previous financial years
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
GROUP
Freehold
land

Leasehold
land

Buildings

Plant and
machinery

Motor
vehicles,
equipment
and
furniture

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

4,136,968

3,446,634

20,061,364

38,909,976

2,413,535

68,968,477

Additions

-

-

-

790,980

53,806

844,786

Depreciation charge

-

(106,271)

(621,024)

(785,015)

(9,292,125)

Total

2016
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2016

Currency translation
differences

(7,779,815)

-

-

-

(13,082)

(259,882)

4,136,968

3,340,363

19,440,340

31,674,341

1,669,244

60,261,256

4,136,968

5,887,188

31,051,177 125,958,943

22,094,550

189,128,826

-

(2,546,825)

(11,610,837)

(94,284,602)

(20,425,306)

(128,867,570)

4,136,968

3,340,363

19,440,340

31,674,341

1,669,244

60,261,256

4,136,968

3,552,905

20,682,388

44,423,712

2,145,054

74,941,027

Additions

-

-

-

1,193,089

1,079,184

2,272,273

Disposals

-

-

-

(17,292)

(20,753)

(38,045)

Depreciation charge

-

(106,271)

(621,024)

(7,856,035)

(935,406)

(9,518,736)

Currency translation
differences

-

-

-

1,166,502

145,456

1,311,958

4,136,968

3,446,634

20,061,364

38,909,976

2,413,535

68,968,477

At 31 December 2016

(246,800)

At 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount
2015
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2015

At 31 December 2015
At 31 December 2015
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount

4,136,968

5,887,188

-

(2,440,554)

(10,989,813)

31,051,177 125,857,921
(86,947,945)

4,136,968

3,446,634

20,061,364

38,909,976

22,142,918

189,076,172

(19,729,383)

(120,107,695)

2,413,535

68,968,477
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
COMPANY

Buildings

Plant and
machinery

Motor
vehicles,
equipment
and
furniture

RM

RM

RM

RM

20,061,364

29,547,717

1,471,247

51,080,328

-

-

3,450

3,450

(710,225)

(6,734,407)

764,472

44,349,371

Total

2016
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2016
Additions
Depreciation charge
At 31 December 2016

(621,024)
19,440,340

(5,403,158)
24,144,559

At 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount

31,051,177

86,959,628

16,299,695

134,310,500

(11,610,837)

(62,815,069)

(15,535,223)

(89,961,129)

19,440,340

24,144,559

764,472

44,349,371

20,682,388

33,863,325

1,155,255

55,700,968

-

1,178,951

1,079,184

2,258,135

(763,192)

(6,878,775)

1,471,247

51,080,328

2015
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2015
Additions
Depreciation charge
At 31 December 2015

(621,024)
20,061,364

(5,494,559)
29,547,717

At 31 December 2015
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount

31,051,177

89,128,848

16,296,245

136,476,270

(10,989,813)

(59,581,131)

(14,824,998)

(85,395,942)

20,061,364

29,547,717

1,471,247

51,080,328

The buildings of the Company are located on its subsidiary companies’ land.					
The motor vehicles held under finance leases at the reporting date of the Group and of the Company had a net
carrying amount of RM574,638 (2015: RM1,097,384).
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Group
2016
RM

2015
RM

23,955,722

23,955,722

315,195

252,156

63,039

63,039

378,234

315,195

23,577,488

23,640,527

Cost
At 1 January/31 December
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January
Depreciation for the financial year (Note 7)
At 31 December
Net carrying amount

Investment properties of the Group comprises of 9 units of 1 1/2 storey semi-detached light industrial factory, 15
units of double-storey shop lot and 28 units of 1 1/2 storey light industrial terrace factory, all located at Klang,
Selangor Darul Ehsan. Investment properties of the Group is renting to third parties to earn rental income. The fair
value of the properties is classified as level 3 where there have been no recent transactions of similar properties
at or near reporting date. The total fair value of the investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2016 is
determined as RM44,180,000 (2015: RM44,180,000)
Fair value of the 1 1/2 storey semi-detached light industrial factory and 1 1/2 storey light industrial terrace factory
is determined by an Independent Valuer on 18 March 2016, however fair value of the shop lot is determined by
Directors of the Company. Fair value is determine based on comparable transactions with relevant adjustments
being made to key attributes such as the timing of the transaction, land size and shape, accessibility of the location,
zoning and etc.

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Company
2016
RM

2015
RM

- At cost

20,601,800

20,551,798

- Capital contribution

20,116,071

20,116,071

40,717,871

40,667,869

Unquoted shares:

The subsidiary companies are as follows:
Name

Group’s
effective interest

Principal activities

2016

2015

Gradefield Property Management Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

-

Hil-Edrola (M) Sdn. Bhd. *

60%

100%

Developing and manufacturing
headlining for automotive industry

Hil Assembly Services Sdn. Bhd. *

51%

51%

Investment holding, manufacture
and sale of industrial and domestic
moulded plastic products, and subassembly of plastic-related products

Hil Automation Sdn. Bhd. *

51%

51%

Investment holding

Hil Automotive Components Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

100%

Dormant

Property management
of
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (CONTINUED)
Name

Group’s
effective interest

Principal activities

2016

2015

Hil Properties Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Investment holding and property
development

Hil Sales & Marketing Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

100%

Sales and marketing

Hilgraphics Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

100%

Sub-assembly of plastic-related
products

Iziba Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

100%

Property holding

Nada Mestika Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Investment holding and property
holding

Sedar Makmur Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Property management

Hil Industries Automotive (M) Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

100%

Mould making and precision metal
stamping

Supreme Logic Sdn. Bhd. *

100%

100%

Property holding

41%

41%

Investment holding

41%

41%

Designing and assembling industrial
machinery and equipment for the
purpose of factory automation

Pembinaan Laksamana Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Property development and property
management

Satu Tunas Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Property investment and investment
holding

Tunas Pasti Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Housing development and investment
holding

100%

100%

Researching, designing, manufacturing
and selling any kind of precision
moulds and relevant plastic products,
and providing relevant services

100%

100%

Property development and investment
holding

Subsidiary company of
Hil Assembly Services Sdn. Bhd.
Antaforce Engineering Sdn. Bhd. *
Subsidiary company of
Hil Automation Sdn. Bhd.
Hil Technology Sdn. Bhd. *

Subsidiary companies of
Hil Properties Sdn. Bhd.

Subsidiary company of
Hil Sales & Marketing Sdn. Bhd.
Hil Precision Plastic Technology (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd. *

Subsidiary company of
Satu Tunas Sdn. Bhd.
AMJ Construction Sdn. Bhd.
* Audited by a firm other than Cheng & Co
All the subsidiary companies listed above are incorporated in Malaysia except for Hil Precision Plastic Technology
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The Group does not have material non-controlling interests as at end of the reporting date.
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15. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Group
2016
RM

2015
RM

201,692

195,415

Available-for-sale financial assets
Unit trusts at fair value

16. GOODWILL
Group
2016
RM

2015
RM

4,932,358

4,932,358

Cost
At 1 January/31 December
Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to business segment.
No geographical segment of the goodwill allocation is prepared as the Group's activities are carried out predominantly
in Malaysia.
A business segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is analysed as follows:
Group

Property development and management ("CGU")

2016
RM

2015
RM

4,932,358

4,932,358

Recoverable amount based on fair value less costs to sell
The recoverable amount of CGU is based on fair value less costs to sell. The fair value less costs to sell is based on
observable market price for similar assets or observable market price for assets for different nature, condition or
location which is adjusted to reflect the different nature, condition or location of assets.

17. INVENTORIES
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

Raw materials

3,530,031

3,428,976

1,900,207

2,079,971

Work in progress

3,291,114

3,587,693

514,512

552,038

Finished goods

1,820,451

2,030,099

1,604,169

1,652,676

5,433

-

-

-

At cost

Consumables
Completed properties held for sale

6,153,342

2,859,701

-

-

14,800,371

11,906,469

4,018,888

4,284,685
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18. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Group
2016
RM

2015
RM

- freehold land

58,602,825

58,602,825

- development costs

10,402,135

6,438,387

69,004,960

65,041,212

Development costs incurred during the financial year

18,255,450

21,846,627

Cost recognised during the financial year

(13,403,390)

(17,882,879)

Property development costs
At 1 January

Transfer to inventories

(3,293,641)

Property development costs

70,563,379

69,004,960

- freehold land

58,602,825

58,602,825

- development costs

11,960,554

10,402,135

70,563,379

69,004,960

-

Analysed as follows:

19. ACCRUED BILLINGS
Group
2016
RM

2015
RM

Revenue recognised in profit or loss to date

94,304,222

61,604,660

Progress billings to date

(86,397,904)

(51,586,910)

7,906,318

10,017,750

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

15,754,324

19,277,935

10,916,475

15,146,032

Trade receivables

Third parties
Less: Allowance for impairment

(390,754)
15,363,570

(408,761)
18,869,174

(15,076)
10,901,399

(39,100)
15,106,932
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

-

-

72,931,482

81,861,452

Other receivables
Amount due from subsidiary companies
(related parties)

677,056

424,394

79,593

79,544

14,503,673

17,137,614

13,374,083

15,993,052

15,180,729

17,562,008

86,385,158

97,934,048

30,544,299

36,431,182

97,286,557

113,040,980

Add: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 31)

152,537,881

131,481,930

106,605,945

88,194,312

Total loans and receivables

183,082,180

167,913,112

203,892,502

201,235,292

Deposits
Other receivables

Total trade and other receivables

(a) Trade receivables
The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 (2015: 30 to 90) days. They are recognised at their
original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables is as follows:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

Neither past due nor impaired

6,335,249

7,152,404

4,930,443

6,183,645

1 to 30 days past due and not impaired

4,064,954

4,111,966

2,917,100

3,624,875

31 to 60 days past due and not impaired

2,108,136

2,591,986

1,442,191

2,325,832

61 to 90 days past due and not impaired

1,057,562

2,154,657

697,219

1,748,235

More than 90 days past due and not
impaired

1,797,669

2,858,161

914,446

1,224,345

9,028,321

11,716,770

5,970,956

8,923,287

390,754

408,761

15,076

39,100

15,754,324

19,277,935

10,916,475

15,146,032

Past due and impaired

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records
with the Group.
None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the
financial year.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued)
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM9,028,321 (2015: RM11,716,770) that are past due at the
reporting date but not impaired.										
										
At the reporting date, the receivables that are past due but not impaired are unsecured in nature.
Receivables that are impaired
The Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the movement of
the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

390,754

408,761

15,076

39,100

(390,754)

(408,761)

(15,076)

(39,100)

-

-

-

-

Collectively impaired
Trade receivables (nominal amounts)
Less: Allowance for impairment

Movement in allowance accounts:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

At 1 January
Allowance made for the financial year
(Note 7)

408,761

325,666

39,100

39,100

6,017

83,095

-

-

Written off

(24,024)

-

(24,024)

-

390,754

408,761

15,076

39,100

(b) Amount due from subsidiary companies
The amount due from subsidiary companies reflected in other receivables is interest free, unsecured, has
no fixed terms of repayment and management expects the debts to be recovered within the next 12 months.

21. DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The effective interest rate for deposits with licensed banks at the end of the financial year ranges from 0.45% to
4.20% (2015: 0.30% to 4.30%).
The maturity period of the deposits with licensed banks at the end of the financial year is within 12 (2015: 12) months.
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22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31 December 2016 include bank balances held under Housing
Development Accounts (opened and maintained under Section 7A of the Housing Development (Control and
Licensing) Act 1966) amounting to RM6,104,073 (2015: RM31,931,536) that may only be used in accordance with
the said Act.

23. SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
Number of ordinary shares
of RM0.50 each

Amount

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

Authorised

400,000,000

400,000,000

200,000,000

200,000,000

Issued and fully paid

278,714,144

278,714,144

139,357,072

139,357,072

(a) Share capital
The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared
by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with
regard to the Company's residual assets.
(b) Share premium
Share premium comprises the premium paid on subscription of shares in the Company over and above the
par value of the shares.
Group and Company

At 1 January/31 December

2016
RM

2015
RM

1,280,872

1,280,872

(c) Treasury shares
Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are held by the Company. The amount consists
of the acquisition costs of treasury shares net of the proceeds received on their subsequent sale or issuance.
The Directors of the Company are committed to enhancing the value of the Company for its shareholders and
believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
repurchase transactions were financed by internally generated funds. The shares repurchased are being held
as treasury shares.
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24. CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Group entities with functional currencies other than RM.
Group
2016
RM

2015
RM

At 1 January

599,3201

1,828,480

Foreign currency translation for the financial year

(787,701)

4,164,721

At 31 December

5,205,500

5,993,201

25. RETAINED PROFITS
Under the single tier tax system, tax on the Company's profit is the final tax and accordingly, any dividends to the
shareholders are not subject to tax.

26. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Group and Company
2016
RM

2015
RM

- not later than one year

447,849

522,384

- later than one year and not later than five years

748,306

1,196,155

1,196,155

1,718,539

Future minimum lease payments:

Future interest charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

(76,279)

(137,968)

1,119,876

1,580,571

713,032

1,119,876

406,844

460,695

1,119,876

1,580,571

Non-current
- later than one year and not later than five years
Current
- not later than one year

The finance lease liabilities are subject to a fixed interest rate of 2.25% to 2.88% (2015: 2.25% to 2.88%) per
annum.
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Group

At 1 January

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

22,455,232

22,938,062

7,291,829

7,774,659

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 11)

(1,166,958)

(482,830)

(1,166,958)

(482,830)

At 31 December

21,288,274

22,455,232

6,124,871

7,291,829

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
The recognised deferred tax liabilities are in respect of the following:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

21,288,274

22,455,232

6,124,871

7,291,829

Tax effect of:
- difference between the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and their tax
base

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:
Group

Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unutilised tax losses

2016
RM

2015
RM

14,628

246

47,128,932

42,030,906

47,143,560

42,031,152
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

9,573,914

7,902,944

4,769,644

5,483,075

Trade payables
Third parties
Other payables
-

-

13,198,928

13,858,574

Amount due to related company

1,454,125

-

-

-

Accruals

4,081,523

4,712,329

3,596,160

4,365,046

Other payables

6,004,126

8,939,815

3,600,088

5,641,782

11,539,774

13,652,144

20,395,176

23,865,402

21,113,688

21,555,088

25,164,820

29,348,477

1,119,876

1,580,571

1,119,876

1,580,571

22,233,564

23,135,659

26,284,696

30,929,048

Amount due to subsidiary companies

Total trade and other payables
Add: Finance lease liabilities (Note 26)
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised
cost
(a) Trade payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group are 30 to 90
(2015: 30 to 90) days.
(b) Amount due to subsidiary companies
The amount due to subsidiary companies are interest free, unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and
management expects the debts to be repaid within the next 12 months.
(c) Amount due to related company
The amount due to related company are interest free, unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and
management expects the debts to be repaid within the next 12 months.

29. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Cost of property, plant and equipment
purchased (Note 12)
Less: Amount financed
by finance lease creditors
Cash disbursed for purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

844,786

2,272,273

3,450

2,258,135

844,786

(736,000)
1,536,273

3,450

(736,000)
1,522,135
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30. DIVIDENDS
Group and Company
2016
RM

2015
RM

4,149,258

4,149,258

Recognised during the financial year:
Dividends on ordinary shares:
– First and final single tier dividend for 2015:
3% or 1.50 sen per share (2014: 3% or 1.50 sen per share)

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balance sheet
amounts:
Group

Deposits with licensed banks

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

137,709,246

85,775,559

105,319,982

82,524,155

14,828,635

45,706,371

1,285,963

5,670,157

152,537,881

131,481,930

106,605,945

88,194,312

Cash and bank balances

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Identity of related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key management
personnel comprises all the Directors of the Group.
The Company has a related party relationship with its subsidiary companies, related companies and key management
personnel.
Significant related party transactions
Company
2016
RM

2015
RM

60,000

-

Purchase of goods from subsidiaries

202,184

251,141

Rental income of land and buildings from subsidiaries

120,000

120,000

Rental of land and buildings charged by subsidiaries

387,947

387,947

Advances from subsidiaries

121,770

-

5,088,406

4,974,108

Transactions with subsidiaries of the Company
Sale of plant and equipment to subsidiaries

Advances to subsidiaries
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Compensation of key management personnel
The compensation paid to key management personnel during the financial year was as follows:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

787,240

967,160

787,240

787,240

94,080

115,536

94,080

94,080

881,320

1,082,696

881,320

881,320

Directors’ remuneration (Note 9):
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits:
– Defined contribution plans

												

33. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary
format, business segment, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.
Intersegment pricing is based on arm’s length transactions under terms not materially different from transactions
with unrelated parties. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets and expenses and related
liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected
to be used for more than one period.
Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments:
Manufacturing

–

Manufacture and sale of industrial and domestic
moulded plastic products

Property development
and management

–

Development of residential, commercial and light
industrial properties, and letting out of properties and
provision of property management services

Trading, services and others

–

General trading

						
Geographical segments
The manufacturing segment operates in two principal geographical areas, Malaysia and the People’s Republic of
China.
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.
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33. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments

Manufacturing

Property
development
and
management

Trading,
services
and others

Group

RM

RM

RM

RM

62,959,489

34,771,887

-

97,731,376

2016
Sales
Total sales
Intersegment sales
External sales

-

(387,947)

-

(387,947)

-

97,343,429

62,959,489

34,383,940

2,601,613

19,809,717

(5,422)

22,405,908

(67,110)

-

-

(67,110)

Results
Segment results (external)
Finance costs
Profit before tax

22,338,798

Income tax expense

(6,402,868)

Profit for the financial year

15,935,930

Other information
Segment assets

206,641,486

154,846,792

15,012

Unallocated assets

4,962,231

Total consolidated assets
Segment liabilities

361,503,290
366,465,521

16,627,048

5,603,171

3,345

22,233,564

Unallocated liabilities

22,575,587

Total consolidated liabilities

44,809,151

Capital expenditure
Depreciation

836,730

8,056

-

844,786

9,184,914

107,211

-

9,292,125
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33. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

Manufacturing

Property
development
and
management

Trading,
services
and others

Group

RM

RM

RM

RM

84,508,713

35,991,900

-

120,500,613

2015
Sales
Total sales
Intersegment sales
External sales

-

(387,947)

84,508,713

-

35,603,953

(387,947)

-

120,112,666

8,290,736

16,580,963

(5,009)

24,866,690

(64,228)

-

-

(64,228)

Results
Segment results (external)
Finance costs
Profit before tax

24,802,462

Income tax expense

(7,614,456)

Profit for the financial year

17,188,006

Other information
Segment assets

206,727,263

145,772,228

14,630

Unallocated assets

4,966,332

Total consolidated assets
Segment liabilities

352,514,121
357,480,453

21,402,260

1,730,006

3,393

23,135,659

Unallocated liabilities

23,727,395

Total consolidated liabilities

46,863,054

Capital expenditure

-

2,272,273

Depreciation
9,412,465
106,271
		
									

2,272,273

-

9,518,736
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33. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments

Malaysia

People’s
Republic
of China

Consolidated

RM

RM

RM

89,037,999

8,305,430

97,343,429

334,498,533

27,004,757

361,503,290

53,806

790,980

844,786

Revenue from external customers

108,215,757

11,896,909

120,112,666

Segment assets

320,830,698

31,683,423

352,514,121

2,258,135

14,138

2,272,273

2016
Revenue from external customers
Segment assets
Capital expenditure
2015

Capital expenditure

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management objectives and policies
Exposure to credit, interest rate and currency risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s and of the Company’s
business. Financial risk and management policies of the Group and of the Company are summarised below.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its receivables
from customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiary
companies.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
At the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is represented by the
carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.
Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
are stated at their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables are regular customers that have
been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the receivables.
Any receivables having significant balances past due more than 90 days, which are deemed to have higher credit
risk, are monitored individually.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period by geographical region was:
Group

Malaysia
People’s Republic of China
Other countries

2016
RM

2015
RM

11,152,497

13,352,640

4,211,073

3,297,053

-

2,219,481

15,363,570

18,869,174

The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to subsidiary companies. The Company monitors the
results of the subsidiary companies regularly. At the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position and there was no indication that the
loans and advances to the subsidiary companies are not recoverable.
(b) Interest rate risk
The Group’s short term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments,
based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

137,709,246

85,775,559

105,319,982

82,524,155

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

(1,119,876)
136,589,370

(1,580,571)
84,194,988

(1,119,876)
104,200,106

(1,580,571)
80,943,584

The Group’s and the Company’s income and operating cash flows are independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.
(c) Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily RM and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group and the Company ensure that net exposure to foreign currency risk is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances. The Group
and the Company do not transact in derivative instruments.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk based on carrying amounts as at the end of the
reporting period was:
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Group

2016
Denominated in

In RM

2015
Denominated in

USD

RMB

USD

RMB

Trade and other receivables

7,229,555

1,328,152

7,648,262

1,289,574

Deposits with licensed banks

16,137,270

2,862,074

8,095,764

2,896,135

Cash and bank balances

3,974,359

1,237,131

11,337,067

1,434,228

Trade and other payables

(1,338,101)

(1,848,271)

Exposure in the statement of financial
position

26,003,083

3,579,086

(493,465)
26,587,628

(2,053,130)
3,566,807

Company

Denominated in USD

In RM

2016

2015

Trade and other receivables

2,908,398

4,351,209

Deposits with licensed banks

16,137,270

8,095,764

1,125,416

4,834,399

Cash and bank balances
Trade and other payables

(256,182)

Exposure in the statement of financial position

19,914,902

(22,461)
17,258,911

The Group is also exposed to currency translation risk arising from its investment in the foreign subsidiary
company.

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the senstitivity of the Group’s and the Company’s equity and post-tax profit
or loss to a reasonably possible change in the USD and RMB against the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities, with all other variables held constant.

Equity
RM

2016
Profit or loss
RM

Equity
RM

2015
Profit or loss
RM

- strengthened 10%

1,925,185

1,925,185

1,617,672

1,617,672

- weakened 10%

(1,925,185)

(1,925,185)

(1,617,672)

(1,617,672)

Group
USD/RM
USD/RMB

- strengthened 10%

457,426

457,426

705,976

705,976

- weakened 10%

(457,426)

(457,426)

(705,976)

(705,976)

Company
USD/RM

- strengthened 10%

1,925,185

1,925,185

1,617,672

1,617,672

- weakened 10%

(1,925,185)

(1,925,185)

(1,617,672)

(1,617,672)

25,164,820
26,360,975

25,164,820
26,284,696

Trade and other payables

1,196,155

1,119,876

Finance lease liabilities

2.25% to 2.88%

22,309,843

22,233,564

Company

21,113,688

21,113,688

Trade and other payables

1,196,155

Contractual
cash flows

1,119,876

2.25% to 2.88%

Contractual
interest
rate

Finance lease liabilities

Group

2016

Carrying
amount

25,612,669

25,164,820

447,849

21,561,537

21,113,688

447,849

Under 1 year

359,520

-

359,520

359,520

-

359,520

1 - 2 years

388,786

-

388,786

388,786

-

388,786

2-5 years

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the management to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due.										
		
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on
undiscounted contractual payments:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
principally from its various payables, loans and borrowings.

(d) Liquidity risk

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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29,348,477
31,067,016

29,348,477
30,929,048

Trade and other payables

1,718,539

1,580,571

Finance lease liabilities

2.25% to 2.88%

23,273,627

23,135,659

Company

21,555,088

1,580,571

1,718,539

Contractual
cash flows

21,555,088

2.25% to 2.88%

Contractual
interest
rate

Trade and other payables

Carrying
amount

Finance lease liabilities

Group

2015

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

29,870,861

29,348,477

522,384

22,077,472

21,555,088

522,384

Under 1 year

447,849

-

447,849

447,849

-

447,849

1 - 2 years

748,306

-

748,306

748,306

-

748,306

2-5 years
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair values
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables and borrowings
approximate fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.
The fair values of other financial assets, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
position, are as follows:
2016

2015

Carrying
amount
RM

Fair
value
RM

Carrying
amount
RM

Fair
value
RM

201,692

201,692

195,415

195,415

1,119,876

1,067,317

1,580,571

1,492,490

1,119,876

1,067,317

1,580,571

1,492,490

Group

Financial Asset
Unit trusts

Financial Liability
Finance lease liabilities
Company

Financial Liability
Finance lease liabilities

Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 		
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair values (Continued)
Level 1
RM

Level 2
RM

Level 3
RM

Total
RM

201,692

-

-

201,692

-

-

1,067,317

1,067,317

195,415

-

-

195,415

-

-

1,492,490

1,492,490

-

-

1,067,317

1,067,317

-

-

1,492,490

1,492,490

Group
2016

Financial Asset
Investment in unit trusts

Financial Liability
Finance lease liabilities
2015

Financial Assets
Investment in unit trusts

Financial Liability
Finance lease liabilities
Company
2016

Financial Liability
Finance lease liabilities
2015

Financial Liability
Finance lease liabilities

87

Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is required to maintain a
consolidated shareholders’ equity equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid-up capital (excluding
treasury shares) and such shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40 million. The Company has complied with this
requirement.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group’s policy to keep
the gearing ratio at manageable levels. As at 31 December 2016, the Group is in a net cash position.
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

1,119,876

1,580,571

1,119,876

1,580,571

Less : Cash and cash equivalents

152,537,881

131,481,930

106,605,945

88,194,312

Net cash

151,418,005

129,901,359

105,486,069

86,613,741

Loans and borrowings

36. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON THE BREAKDOWN OF RETAINED PROFITS INTO REALISED AND
UNREALISED PROFITS OR LOSSES
The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2016 into realised and
unrealised profits or losses is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Group

Company

2016
RM

2015
RM

2016
RM

2015
RM

202,089,115

199,932,490

126,423,050

124,254,409

Total retained profits:
- Realised
- Unrealised

(4,861,722)
197,227,393

Less: Consolidation adjustments

(21,683,765)

Total retained profits

175,543,628

(5,065,319)
194,867,171
(31,876,144)
162,991,027

(5,138,781)

(4,998,136)

121,284,269

119,256,273

-

-

121,284,269

119,256,273
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Properties Owned by the Group
Location

Description

Tenure
(Year of
Expiry)

Existing
Use

Approximate
Age of
Building

Land Area
/Built up
Area
(SQ FT)

Date of
Acquisition

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11,
Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Land

Leasehold
60 years
(2049)

Factory

Lot Nos 15825 & 15830
Bukit Kemuning
Mukim & Daerah of Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Land

Freehold

-

294,457

21.08.1989

2,939

Factory &
Warehouse

-

173,325

15.12.1994

4,137

1 Factory
buildings
2 Factory
buildings
3 Factory
Buildings

-

Factory

27 years

78,087

-

3,409

-

Factory

26 years

23,465

-

1,155

-

Factory

24 years

21,993

-

1,012

Lot No 15825, Bukit Kemuning
Mukim & Daerah of Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Factory
buildings

-

Factory

19 years

117,552

-

8,242

Lot No 15830, Bukit Kemuning
Mukim & Daerah of Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Warehouse

-

Storage

19 years

20,996

-

1,723

P.T. Nos 20989 - 21003
Mukim & Daerah of Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Commercial
(15 units of
double storey
shophouse)

Freehold

Rental

25 years

24,746

05.12.1996

3,646

P.T. Nos 5655 – 5682
Mukim of Kapar ,
District of Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial (28
units of 1½
storey terrace
factory)

Freehold

Rental

19 years

86,108

05.12.1996

11,759

P.T. Nos 5443, 5444, 5446, 5447,
5470 – 5474, Mukim of Kapar,
District of Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial (9
units of 1½
storey terrace
factory)

Freehold

Rental

19 years

82,444

05.12.1996

8,173

Land

Leasehold
60 years
(2049)

Factory

-

39,209

28.09.2006

402

Factory
buildings

-

Factory

10 years

35,968

-

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11,
Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

P.T. No 30946, Mukim 1,
District of Seberang Prai
Tengah, Pulau Pinang
Lot 476, Tingkat Perusahaan
Empat, Kawasan Perindustrian
Prai, SPT, Pulau Pinang

Net Book
Value
(RM’000)

3,900
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As at 31 March 2017

Class of Securities

:

Ordinary Shares of RM0.50 each

Authorised Share Capital

:

RM200,000,000.00 comprising of 400,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

Issued Share Capital

:

RM139,357,072 comprising of 278,714,144 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

Voting Rights

:

Every member present in person or by proxy or represented by attorney shall
have one vote and upon a poll, every such member shall have one vote for every
share held by him

No. of Shareholders

:

4,050

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
Direct
Shareholdings

Shareholders

%

Indirect
Shareholdings

%

Dalta Industries Sdn. Bhd.

149,089,554

53.90

96,220

0.03

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

25,113,566

9.08

173,708,974

62.80

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
No. of
Shareholders

Size of Shareholding

%

Shareholdings

%

1 - 99

879

21.70

44,454

0.02

100 – 1,000

687

16.96

542,969

0.20

1,945

48.03

8,058,909

2.91

474

11.70

13,142,709

4.75

63

1.56

105,738,749

38.22

2

0.05

149,089,554

53.90

4,050

100.00

276,617,344

100.00

1,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares
Grand Total

LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31MARCH 2017
No

Name

Shareholding

%

1

Dalta Industries Sdn. Bhd.

117,431,142

42.45

2

Dalta Industries Sdn. Bhd.

31,658,412

11.44

3

HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. pledged securities account for Yap Kok
Weng

13,515,600

4.89

4

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

11,706,166

4.23

5

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

10,000,000

3.62

6

Wilayah Sehati Sdn. Bhd.

9,841,100

3.56

7

Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong

6,277,928

2.27

8

Puan Sri Datin Catherine Yeoh Eng Neo

5,829,700

2.11

9

CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. CIMB Bank for Beh Hang Kong
(M28015)

4,518,100

1.63
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No
10

Name

Shareholding

%

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. pledged securities account for Beh
Hang Kong

3,855,800

1.39

11

Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng

3,575,600

1.29

12

Dato’ Ambrose Leonard Ng Kwee Heng

3,553,400

1.28

13

Steven Junior Ng Kwee Leng

3,191,500

1.15

14

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

3,005,400

1.09

15

Lee Thian Lye

2,460,000

0.89

16

Pandang Usaha Sdn. Bhd.

2,158,971

0.78

17

AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. pledged securities account for Beh
Hang Kong

2,008,000

0.73

18

Koh Bee Lan

1,614,510

0.58

19

Ngan Bee Poh

1,500,000

0.54

20

AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. pledged securities account for Beh
Hang Kong

1,490,000

0.54

21

Puan Sri Datin Catherine Yeoh Eng Neo

1,354,700

0.49

22

Tan Kim Wah

1,018,988

0.37

23

HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Exempt an for Credit Suisse (SG BR-TSTAsing)

1,000,000

0.36

24

Sim Sook Lye

918,285

0.33

25

Mujur Cemerlang Sdn. Bhd.

877,600

0.32

26

Amal Restu Sdn. Bhd.

747,000

0.27

27

CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. CIMB Bank for Mohd Sukri Bin Husin
(MY2184)

533,500

0.19

28

Saw Wah Theng

500,000

0.18

29

CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. CIMB Bank for Lim Hooi Yen (MY0648)

475,000

0.17

30

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

402,000

0.15

Directors’ Interest in Shares of the Company and Related Corporations as at 31 March 2017
Direct
Shareholdings
Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

Indirect
Shareholdings

%

%

25,113,566

9.08

173,708,974

62.80

-

-

-

-

Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong

6,668,300

2.41

181,483,740

65.61

Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng

Dato’ Setia Abdul Halim bin Dato’ Haji Abdul Rauf

3,575,600

1.29

181,483,740

65.61

Mat Ripen bin Mat Elah

-

-

-

-

Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum

-

-

-

-

Ooi Hock Guan

-

-

-

-

In addition to the above, there is no indirect interest of Directors’ in the shares of any subsidiary companies i.e. deemed
to have an interest in shares in the subsidiary companies to extent that the Company as an interest.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Forty-Seventh Annual General Meeting (“47th AGM”) of Hil Industries Berhad will be
held at Bukit Kemuning Golf & Country Resort, Lot 6031, Batu 7, Bukit Kemuning, 42450 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan
on 15th June 2017 at 10.00 a.m. for transacting the following businesses:-

As Ordinary business
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st
December 2016 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

……….. Ordinary Resolution 1

2. To approve a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share of
RM0.50 each in respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2016.

……….. Ordinary Resolution 2

3. To re-elect the following Director retiring in accordance with Article 102 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.
a) Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong
b) Ooi Hock Guan

……….. Ordinary Resolution 3
……….. Ordinary Resolution 4

4. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31st
December 2016.

……….. Ordinary Resolution 5

5. To appove the payment of Directors’ Fees payable for the period from 1st January
2017 until the following Annual General Meeting of the Company of an amount up
to RM5,000.

……….. Ordinary Resolution 6

6. To appoint Auditors and to authorize Directors to fix their remuneration.

……….. Ordinary Resolution 7

Notice of Nomination of Messrs HLB Ler Lum as the new Auditors of the Company,
and of the intention to propose the following Ordinary Resolution, a copy of which
is set out and marked “Annexure A”, has been received by the Company:“THAT Messrs HLB Ler Lum be and are hereby appointed as the new Auditors of
the Company in place of the retiring Auditors, Messrs Cheng & Co., and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at a remuneration to
be determined by the Directors”

As special business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Ordinary Resolutions:
7. (i) Authority to Allot Shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the
		
Companies Act 2016

........... Ordinary Resolution 8

“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act 2016, the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and the approvals of the relevant
governmental/regulatory authorities, if applicable, the Directors be and are
hereby empowered, pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies
Act 2016, to issue shares in the Company from time to time and upon such
terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in their
absolute discretion deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares
issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed 10% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company for the time being and that the Directors be
and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation
for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and
that such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company.”
(ii) Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority
“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act 2016, the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and all
other applicable laws, guidelines, rules and regulations, the Company be and
is hereby authorised to purchase such amount of ordinary shares of RM0.50
each in the Company as may be determined by the Directors of the Company
from time to time through Bursa Securities as the Directors may deem fit and
expedient in the interest of the Company provided that:-

........... Ordinary Resolution 9
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(a) the aggregate number of shares purchased does not exceed 10% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as quoted on Bursa
Securities as at the point of purchase(s);
(b) the maximum fund to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of
purchasing the shares shall not exceed the aggregate of the retained profits
of the Company based on the latest Audited Financial Statements and/
or the latest management accounts of the Company (where applicable)
available at the time of the purchase(s);
(c) the Directors of the Company may decide either to retain the shares
purchased as treasury shares or cancel the shares or retain part of the
shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder or to
resell the shares or distribute the shares as dividends;
THAT the authority conferred by this Resolution shall commence immediately
and shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the passing of this Ordinary Resolution,
unless earlier revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting.
AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company
to act and take all such steps and do all things as are necessary or expedient
implement, finalise and give full effect to the aforesaid purchase.”
(iii) Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director

............. Ordinary Resolution 10

“THAT approval be and is hereby given to Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum,
who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to act as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the company in accordance with the
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012.”
(iv) Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director

............. Ordinary Resolution 11

“THAT approval be and is hereby given to En. Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah, who
has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to act as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the company in accordance with the
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012.”
8. To transact any other business of which due notice has been given.

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT AND PAYMENT DATE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Forty-Sixth Annual General Meeting of
Hil Industries Berhad, a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary shares of RM0.50 each for the financial
year ended 31st December 2016 will be paid on 18th August 2017 to Depositors whose names appear in the Record of
Depositors on 28th July 2017. A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:
1. Shares transferred into the depositor’s securities account before 4.00pm on 28th July 2017 in respect of ordinary
transfers; and
2. Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis in accordance with the rules of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

BERNARD LIM BOON SIANG
(MACS 01153)
Company Secretary
Shah Alam
28th April 2017
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
(continued)

NOTES:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote in
his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
2. In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be under its Common Seal or under the
hands of its attorney.
3. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions
of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.
4. Where a member of the Company is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies
which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
5. The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 3, Jalan Lada
Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding
the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
6. Only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 8th June 2017 will be entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS
7. Ordinary Resolution 8 is proposed pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016 and if passed,
will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the above general meeting, authority to issue shares
from the unissued capital of the Company for such purposes as the Directors may deem fit and in the interest of the
Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting will expire at the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The general mandate sought for issue of shares is a renewal to the general mandate sought in the preceding year. As
at the date of Notice, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors
at the 46th AGM held on 23rd June 2016 and hence no proceeds were raised there from. The renewal of the general
mandate is to provide flexibility to the Company to issue new shares without the need to convene separate general
meeting to obtain its shareholders’ approval so as to avoid incurring additional cost and time. The purpose of this
general mandate is for possible fund raising exercises including but not limited to further placement of shares for
purpose of funding current and/or future investment projects, working capital and/or acquisitions.
8. Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed above, if passed, will allow the Company to purchase its own shares up to 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed the retained
profits of the Company. The authority shall continue to be in force until the date of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company unless earlier revoked or varied by Ordinary Resolution of the Company in a general meeting and is
subject to annual renewal. Further information on this resolution is set out in the Statement dated 28th April 2017,
which is sent out together with the Company’s 2016 Annual Report.
9. Ordinary Resolution 10 and 11, if passed, will allow the Independent Non-Executive Director to be retained and
continued to act as Independent Non-Executive Director to fulfil the requirements of Paragraph 3.04 of the Main
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and to be in line with the recommendations 3.2 and
3.3 of the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2012. The details of justifications are set out in the page 16 of the
Company’s 2016 Annual Report.
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Statement Accompanying Notice of
Annual General Meeting
Pursuant to paragraph 8.27(2) of the Bursa Securities Listing Requirements
1. A total of five (5) Board Meetings were held during the year as follows:Date

Place

25-Feb-16

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam

14-Apr-16

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam

25-May-16

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam

25-Aug-16

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam

23-Nov-16

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11, Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam

		
2. Details of attendance of each Director at the above Board Meetings as follows:Name of Directors

Number of Meetings Attended

Tan Sri Dato’ Ng Boon Thong @ Ng Thian Hock

5/5

Dato’ Setia Abdul Halim Bin Dato’ Haji Abdul Rauf

5/5

Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong

5/5

Malcolm Jeremy Ng Kwee Seng

5/5

Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum

4/5

Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah

4/5

Ooi Hock Guan

5/5

				
3. Directors who are standing for re-election are as below:(a) Director standing for re-election retiring in accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Article of Association:i) Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong
ii) Ooi Hock Guan
(b) Pursuant to Recommendation 3.3 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 to retain the following
Director, who have served the Company as board members for a cumulative term of more than nine years, in the
capacity as Independent Non-Executive Director :Continuing in office as Independent Non-Executive Director
i) Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak Cheng Lum
ii) Mat Ripen Bin Mat Elah
4. The profile of the Directors who are standing for re-election are set out in the Profile of Directors of the Company’s
2016 Annual Report in page 4 to 6.
5. Details of the general mandate to issue securities in the Company pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the
Companies Act 2016 are set out in the Explanatory Note of the Notice of Forty-Seventh Annual General Meeting in
page 93.

Annexure A

[ THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ]

Number of Shares Held
CDS account No.

I/We____________________________________________________________________________(Name of shareholder as per NRIC/ID, in capital letters)
NRIC No./ID No./Company No._________________________________________________________(new)____________________________________(old) of
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ (full address) being a member
of HIL INDUSTRIES BERHAD (“HIB” or “the Company”), hereby appoint________________________________________________________________

(Name of proxy as per NRIC/ID, in capital letters) NRIC No./ID No. ________________________________ (new) ___________________ (old)
or failing whom,____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(name of proxy as per NRIC/ID, in capital letters) NRIC No./ID No. ________________________________ (new) ___________________ (old)
or failing whom, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/our behalf at the Forty-Seventh Annual General Meeting (“47th
AGM”) of the Company to be held at Bukit Kemuning Golf & Country Resort, Lot 6031, Batu 7, Bukit Kemuning, 42450 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul
Ehsan on 15th June 2017 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

RESOLUTION
Ordinary Resolution 1

Ordinary Resolution 2

Ordinary Resolution 3
Ordinary Resolution 4
Ordinary Resolution 5
Ordinary Resolution 6
Ordinary Resolution 7

Ordinary Resolution 8
Ordinary Resolution 9
Ordinary Resolution 10
Ordinary Resolution 11

FOR

AGAINST

Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31st December 2016 together with the Reports of the Directors
and Auditors thereon
To approve a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary
shares of RM0.50 each in respect of the financial year ended 31st
December 2016
Re-election of Dato’ Milton Norman Ng Kwee Leong who retiring in
accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association
Re-election of Ooi Hock Guan who retiring in accordance with Article
102 of the Company’s Articles of Association
Approval of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31st December
2016
To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees payable for the period from 1st
January 2017 until the following Annual General Meeting of the Company
Appointment of Messrs HLB Ler Lum as Auditors in place of the retiring
Auditors, Messrs Cheng & Co and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration
Authority to Allot Shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the
Companies Act 2016
Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority
Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Sak
Cheng Lum
Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director Mat Ripen Bin Mat
Elah

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast. If you do not do so, your proxy shall vote as he
thinks fit, or at his discretion, abstain from voting.
Dated this ____day of________________________2017			

_________________________________________________________

Signature of member(s)/Seal of Shareholders

Telephone No:______________________________

Fold Here

AFFIX
STAMP
HERE

The Company Secretary
(COMPANY NO. 8812-M)

Lot 3, Jalan Lada Sulah 16/11
Section 16, 40000 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Fold Here

